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How We Serve - HKPC and Its Subsidiaries 2019-20
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Consolidated Service Income
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Consolidated Service Income of HK$470.4 million.

639 new consultancy projects; 48 new R&D projects; 55% new orders
from SMEs.

Commercialised 20 technologies and obtained 34 patents.
14% 4.0 related services' income growth.
81% local procurement of which 67% purchased from SMEs.

BUD Fund, Chinese Medicine Development Fund, CP3, PAG, Recycling
Fund and ReTAAS implemented by HKPC approved a total of
HK$581.1 million within the year.
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Strategic Collaborations
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Partnered with MTR Corporation to jointly develop smart railway
solutions.

Joined hands with a global safety certification company to enhance
inspection processes and product authentication.

Signed MOU with Department of Automation of Tsinghua
University to accelerate adoption of smart automation in industry
and business sectors.

Clinched MOU with a smart robotics company from Shenzhen for
collaboration in the R&D of Al and robotics.

Cooperated with Bureau of Commerce of Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province to promote industry upgrade and
transformation.

Established strategic collaborative ties with Shenzhen Institutes
of Advanced Technology of Chinese Academy of Sciences and
Department of Science and Technology of Guangdong Province
respectively.
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Customer Satisfaction
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Customer Satisfaction Index Score
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Communication with Stakeholders

o HBift 64 [ETTEAERIEE)
° 19,945 ARBITEBERMNES N A EBEE -
® Held 64 industry consultation events.

® 19,945 people attended networking activities for industry
associations and non-fee charging seminars.
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New Industry Support Platform

o HEH TechDive I8 B EAMM BN BRI EER EAMHS R ML o

e |[nitiated TechDive programme to foster commercialisation of homegrown patents
and applied technologies.
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SMEs Support
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SME One - organised a series of seminars to SMEs on funding
schemes, industry briefings and knowledge, as well as updates on new
business ordinances plus regulations, catered about 600 participants.
Handled 1,491 inquiries on funding schemes.

SME ReachOut - set up on 1 January 2020. The dedicated service
team helps identify funding schemes and solves application
inquiries, organised 12 outreach activities and 6 seminars with 1,062
participants, also handled 1,184 inquiries, all by end March 2020.
HKPC Live - online platform established in November 2019. Amid the
COVID-19, a hundred plus webinars and online trainings pertaining
to remote working tips, cyber security, funding information were
dispatched to keep industries abreast of market updates.

BUD Fund - from January 2020, the Programme was enhanced to cover
all markets which Hong Kong has signed Free Trade Agreements (FTAs)
with. As of end March 2020, BUD Fund granted over HK$1.13 billion
and 2,514 projects to both Mainland China and FTA Programmes.
ReTAAS - as of end March 2020, granted over HK$15.5 million
and 419 projects for retail enterprises, to enhance manpower
management and help enhance productivity through technologies.

PAG - during the year, granted HK$19.5 million for 370 projects.

£ENR HKPC
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How We Serve
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e Organised the 10" Hong Kong Outstanding Corporate Citizenship
g — | \ Awards to recognise companies, corporate volunteer teams and

social enterprises with remarkable achievements in corporate social
responsibility.

& ® Inno Space - hosted 78 startups and STEM education-related events,
as well as 134 safety and machine training sessions, of which 10 were
online trainings.
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Sustainability Implementer
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Recycling Fund - provision of technical support to local recycling

EBEEH industry for the HKS1 billion scheme. As of end March 2020, approved

i Tera-joules ~HK$305 million for 398 projects; launched support measures to
'~Q~'Q sustain the industry during the pandemic.

CP3 - as of end March 2020, cumulatively approved over HK$102
million for 891 projects and activities. The 249 completed
demonstration projects contributed to annual energy savings of 1,350
tera-joules, and reduced annual effluent discharges by 208,000
tonnes.
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Awards and Honours

o NIELEERAMBEEE47EARNE o 12applied R&D innovations won major awards at the 47" International Exhibition

BIFF AR ¢ of Inventions Geneva:
> HERREZBIEFESTELTH > The Honorable Mention Prize of the Chinese Delegation for Invention and
HRIRTEE- Innovation; and The Gold Medal with the Congratulations of the Jury -
B REHIE 4T RoadBot 1 RoadBot 1
- BEE- > Gold Medals -
AT SR A Robotic Hong Kong-style Milk Tea Master
BFRIEH5EE Anti-fouling for Electronics
PR B MR EE K Z 2B Cleaner Coal-fired Power Station Discharged Effluent
> $REZ - > Silver Medals -
3D BEFY ;g@ﬂ@%g 3D Conformal Cooling Mould
BHAEGEE Organic Farming Platform
Zﬁ%;\g@“@;&% Affordable Electrochromic Glass
HReBhEERR$E Smart Apparatus for Better Hearing and Reading
EEATSES5ERE Smart Device for Blind Archers
EER G RNERTIR Cleaner Temple Air

3 ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20
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How We Serve
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o MIEFEARFLE 2019 B EEAR BANRFLE - 22
H1THE -
> BEZAAELEE - FEUE Z 4 RoadBot 1
> BERREARRE - QFEH

o HEZHZEWABIERAR SEHEAE:
> FPHISRIERFEEE At FIE LR ER L PEEA
BERR—EAREF - RRaBEERA
> &% - HEHIE 4L RoadBot |1
> REE - BEERRE

o MEZFEIMNFARBEEREMIERE
> &8 BREGEERHASRERS -
BIsR 2 L R4
> $RHE -
EEEEHRS
RSN ERPB IR B R

o MEBIMHEE 2019 FLB=(E4E1E :
> BEEEHE-
HEREEEAFNIRR "8
- fEREMEETRERE -
ABIPHZPREIRA
BEEMRRERTE

o 5 2019 FEEXBERIFE
» BERPHEETR - ZHEHHE RS RoadBot 1

» Bronze Medals -
Shoes that Track the Aged
Al Disease Diagnosis

Claimed two accolades at the Hong Kong ICT Awards 2019 - Smart
Mobility Award:

» Gold Award in Smart Transportation category - RoadBot 1

> Silver Award in Smart Tourism category - QPoint App

Made debut at the Silicon Valley International Invention Festival
with five awards:

> Gold Medal with the Congratulations of the Jury, Gold Medal
from Beijing Online Invention and China Association of
Inventions Award - Invention & Innovation -
High Pressure Food Processing System for Packaged Food

» Gold Medal - RoadBot 1
> Silver Medal - Smart Safety Belt

Honoured with four awards at the 2™ Asia Exhibition of Inventions
Hong Kong:
> Gold Medal, IFIA Best Invention Award -
Decentralised Food Waste Recycling Station
» Silver Medals -
MiniMover

Defect Recognition Support System for Aviation Industry

Garnered three awards at the 2019 Hong Kong Awards for
Industries:

» Smart Productivity Award -
Smart Production for Jewelry Company

» Equipment and Machinery Design Certificate of Merits —
Robotic Hong Kong-style Milk Tea Master

High Pressure Food Disinfection Processor

Awarded at the CIC Construction Innovation Award 2019:

N

> Construction Safety 2™ Prize - RoadBot 1

£ENR HKPC
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Our Vision
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Be the best solution partner

hkp
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ENB

The Hong Kong Productivity Council (HKPC) is a multi-disciplinary organisation
established by statute in 1967, to promote productivity excellence through
integrated advanced technologies and innovative service offerings to support Hong
Kong enterprises. HKPC is the champion and expert in facilitating Hong Kong's
reindustrialisation empowered by Industry 4.0 (i4.0) and Enterprise 4.0 (e4.0) -
focusing on R&D, loT, big data analytics, Al and Robotic technology development,
digital manufacturing, etc., to help enterprises and industries upgrade their
business performance, lower operating costs, increase productivity and enhance
competitiveness.

HKPC is a trusted partner with comprehensive innovative solutions for Hong Kong
industries and enterprises, enabling them to achieve resources and productivity
utilisation, effectiveness and cost reduction, and enhanced competitiveness in both
local and international marketplace. It offers SMEs and startups immediate and timely
assistance in coping with the ever-changing business environment, accompanying
them on their innovation and transformation journey.

In addition, HKPC partners and collaborates with local industries and enterprises to
develop applied technology solutions for value creation. It also benefits a variety of
sectors through product innovation and technology transfer, with commercialisation
of multiple market-driven patents and technologies, bringing enormous opportunities
abound for licensing and technology transfer, both locally and internationally.

SO

fEdm &=

Our Mission Our Values

IR TR EmAEED BRI Improvement

B3 EESRAIHT  Innovation

Enhance business productivity BEE%®  Integration

and competitiveness SWEEE  Integrity
BESIE  Partnership
202E  Passion
BIABA  People
BRSE  Performance

3 ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20
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Industrial Applications &
Commercialisation
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Government Funding &
Tech Support
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Prototyping & Product Testing

EERIR

EENBHNZRECERBBRFFE BN
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0 o 43
Who We Are

TR

ZERE
Idea Creation

FE Pt 2%
Applied R&D
FETE
What We Do
EBHE/STEM HE
Nurturing Startups /
STEM Education

HEED i4.0 0 4.0
Promote i4.0 & €4.0

How We Are Funded

The HKSAR Government provides us with an annual grant that accounts for
approximately 30% of our income. The other 70% is generated by various fee-charging
services, competitive government-funded applied R&D programmes, and industry
support initiatives.

£ENR HKPC
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Chairman’s Message

BRI SERREEENEERHEES
PRFARRBIF « LEH+FAVIFERRE -

The beauty of transformation lies upon its power to trigger

\_

changes for the betterment, in terms of production and

business operations, that will sustain us not just for the next

~

few years, but for the upcoming decades.

ARSEA > BARRNEE  ETHRELER
PRBRHOER - TEBERR 2019 FETRK
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.
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Transformation is universal, so as digital transformation which has been gaining
prominence over time. As trade conflicts and the adverse impact of the COVID-19
persist, technology will dominate in relaunching the global economy in the post-
pandemic era. HKPC's R&D and technological prowess stand us in good stead to
serve Hong Kong SMEs with transformation, helping them to skew through the

rough seas and advancing the blueprint of smart city development.

Hong Kong's economic outlook has painted a gloomy picture, with a record
of 5.3% GDP decline in the first quarter of 2020. Finding new gear for Hong
Kong economy to revitalise and flourish has been of utmost urgency like never
before. Reindustrialisation is, if | may say so, gathering momentum to increase
competitiveness of our local industries at this crucial moment. It affords industries
the ability to attain market readiness to changes, through transforming business
models towards high value-added and customised production at a minimised
cost. Realising reindustrialisation will be instrumental if we need to sprint faster in

the push of economic recovery.

HKPC is thrilled to have the very best of tech savvy teams to lay the technical
foundation for Hong Kong's reindustrialisation, in terms of solution provision and
skillsets development, as well as promoting Industry 4.0 and Enterprise 4.0 for
wider adoption among industries and businesses. Meanwhile, we also harnessed
Hong Kong's geostrategic location — a gateway to the Greater Bay Area cities
in Mainland China — to unleash cross-border businesses and manufacturing
opportunities for local SMEs to scale up production and extend their reaches to

potential markets.
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During the year, we were delighted to have seen Hong Kong industries starting
to taste the fruits in their reindustrialisation journeys. Our solid track record of
helping SMEs set up local mask production lines amid the pandemic stood
as a testimony to Hong Kong's capabilities in driving reindustrialisation. The
satisfaction was beyond words as we saw people beginning to recognise the
great potential of reindustrialisation. Not only does this wake-up call reinvigorate
our traditional industries, but also fuels Hong Kong's economic resilience and

development in future.

HKPC, as always, is the vanguard at challenging times. The ravaging COVID-19
puts us in a prime position to uphold our noble mission of supporting Hong
Kong industries with specialised technology and know-how. Noteworthy were
the raft of measures that supported SMEs in need, from remote working tips,
informative webinars, funding schemes and technical support, to other timely
initiatives, offering a firm hand to help Hong Kong industries overcome the

difficult times.

Recounting these strenuous efforts, there will be more challenging times ahead
as the pandemic shows no signs of abating. Braving the uncertainties, HKPC
stands ready to embrace transformation, turning it into an essential driver that
empowers Hong Kong SMEs to battle the headwinds and steer recovery of our

economy.

Last but not least, may | express my heartfelt gratitude to all the Council Members
and our fellow colleagues for their unwavering support and contributions in
the previous year, scaling HKPC to new heights in delivering our mission. With
the concerted efforts from all stakeholders, | am confident that as we build our

profession together, we are stronger and will shine brighter!

Willy Lin Sun-mo, G8s,
Chairman

£ENR HKPC
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Council Membership

ESE

Chairman

MEIK, ss, P
Mr Willy Lin Sun-mo, GBS, JP
EEMBR (BER) BRAREREKE

BERENEFEEETRE

Deputy Chairman and Audit Committee Chairman
EE Mr Patrick Wong Chi-kwong

RIK

Retired

WHEEGER

Finance Committee Chairman
JE(Z MrWilson Fung Ying-wai

Managing Director, Milo's Knitwear (International) Ltd.

BEFHEESQER
Staffing Committee Chairman
BRFEIE Mr Sunny Tan

HRIERB RARHATRIAEE

Executive Vice President, Luen Thai Holdings Ltd.

(XBRREEQTR
Business Development Committee Chairman
F#Z, » MrEmil Yu Chen-on, i

RURBRBERRAREKE

ﬂﬁ( Director and General Manger, Keystone Electric Wire
\ Retired & Cable Co. Ltd.
BIE/BX /BRI RK ‘\
Management / Professional / Academic Representatives

E3%EB, )p Prof John Chai Yat-chiu, Jp
BEEE RS RA R E BT
Managing Director, Fook Tin Group Holdings Ltd.

PRI, MH Ms Clara Chan Yuen-shan, MH
MEZERA RA R TR
Chief Executive Officer, Lee Kee Holdings Ltd.

[E1{EEF Mr Felix Chow Bok-hin
BIERIEEERARMITER

Executive Chairman, Niche-Tech Group Ltd.

FEFiE Mr Steve Chuang Tzu-hsiung
ERPEERATITERES

Chief Executive Officer, Precision Enterprise Ltd.

JHETE{E MrWilson Fung Ying-wai
RIK
Retired

12E0E Mr Marvin Hsu Tsun-fai
RELDAHBERARNESR

Director, Diaward Electronic Security Systems Ltd.
ZBBUE Ms Mandy Kwok Man-yee

RIK

Retired

\_

B Mr Paul Poon Wai-yin
BERRE

Vice Chancellor, CLP Power Academy

8% &, MH Prof Tam Kar-yan, mH
EARBEARTIHERSZRRE

Dean of School of Business and Management, The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology

FRTEIE Mr Sunny Tan
BRI B RA RS TRIAESL

Executive Vice President, Luen Thai Holdings Ltd.

LB R, GBs,Jp Mrs Carrie Yau Tsang Ka-lai, GBS, JP
BT BRITHS

Executive Director, Vocational Training Council

BEF Ms Karmen Yeung Ka-yin
EERETMEBMEBA
Partner, KPMG

FEZ, p Mr Emil Yu Chen-on, Jp
REREREEERATBLE

Director and General Manger, Keystone Electric Wire
& Cable Co. Ltd.
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Labour Representatives

ZFIE Ms Amy Lee Sau-king
BEREXTEHASETE

Vice Chairman, The Federation of Hong Kong Electrical
& Mechanical Industries Trade Unions

ZMER, mH Ms Juan Leung Chung-yan, MH
SHIeHEeREER

Vice-Chairman, The Hong Kong Federation of Trade Unions

Z% MrLiHoi

EAEB T @BREEINIRORITEEE

Deputy Executive Director, Hong Kong Confederation of
Trade Unions Training Centre

Bk B & E1ET (20201 B1H4AER)

Membership Changes (Effective Date on 1 January 2020)

$f{ERk & New Members

HEF I
Mr Steve Chuang Tzu-hsiung

=i

Mr Marvin Hsu Tsun-fai
B#{TRL 8 Outgoing Members

IRES B

Mr Alan Cheung

FA 7 12, BBS, MH, JP
Dr Allen Shi Lop-tak, BBS, MH, JP

BFFES
Public Officers

\

BEEHRE

Council Membership

EHI8, )P Ms Annie Choi Suk-han, Jp
BT AR REINER

Permanent Secretary for Innovation and Technology

&2, )p Ms Rebecca Pun Ting-ting, Jp
RIFRHREER

Commissioner for Innovation and Technology

ERET, )p Ms Salina Yan Mei-mei, Jp
T*ESEER

Director-General of Trade and Industry

EN$%8E, )p Mr Andrew Au Sik-hung, Jp
BB RARD

Government Economist

ZFE, p Miss Mabel Li Po-yi, Jp
STRAIRR (5 TEBTH)

Deputy Commissioner for Labour (Labour Administration)

% E0ET Auditor

BRLEREEIMEBAERAR
BDO Limited

E12EER Legal Adviser

S REEET
Wilkinson & Grist

#HZE2020F3A31H
As at 31 March 2020

AENR HKPC
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“Serving Hong Kong with transformation” is the holy grail for HKPC
to champion the digital journey.

Transformation of business models has never been more critical in
the year full of formidable challenges. While digital transformation
can be powerful in improving the speed and reliability of
production, supply chains and fulfilments; it also enables a faster
time-to-market at competitive cost. Only those who are swift and
agile to transform will be able to ride over economic uncertainties.

201920 F ERERTSHR - AWR—BE—RMER

The 2019-20 was an extraordinary challenging year filled with volatilities and

12
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hurdles, largely owing to the domestic social situation, global trade row, and most
significantly, the COVID-19 outbreak. New norms have been gradually formulated,

along with the new opportunities arising under the prevailing pandemic.

HKPC demonstrated the resolution to accommodating business changes with
remarkable deliverables on multiple fronts in the preceding year. We are upholding
our commitment of serving Hong Kong industries with transformation to reduce
operation cost, streamline production and increase competitiveness. Leveraging our
edges in R&D and applied technologies, HKPC has been championing Hong Kong's
development in localised Industry 4.0 (i4.0), Enterprise 4.0 (e4.0), reindustrialisation,
smart manufacturing and smart living applications. These technological and
consultancy services have never been as essential as we pledge to transform

businesses into more digitally-ready at the most trying times.
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Digital transformation is unfolding. We must play host to this venture if we
are to prop up local SMEs. HKPC's endeavour in serving business sectors with
cutting-edge technologies — a mission that can't afford to fail — was evidenced
by the hosting of the spotlight event "Al Impulse 2019’, which was, for the first
time, run in tandem with the “Brand Hong Kong” of the HKSAR Government,
to shine together Hong Kong's creativity and innovative technologies in the

international arena.

Another testimony to our sophistication in homegrown inventions was the
numerous awards that HKPC claimed during the year. We took pride in winning
12 accolades in the 47" International Exhibition of Inventions Geneva, among
others. These awards boosted the global presence of Hong Kong's innovations
and technologies, thanks to our house of world-beating technology experts. Yet,
our vision goes beyond these honours to make good use of smart applications

to improve people’s living and take our smart city development up a notch.

AENR HKPC
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Talent is the key to driving transformation. HKPC not only positions itself as a
powerhouse for local SMEs, but also young talent and startups. We are dedicated
to grooming and bringing together a cluster of talent to ignite inspiration and
grow a tech ecosystem in Hong Kong that can accelerate into the future. During
the year, HKPC Academy and Inno Space organised a host of STEM events and
trainings. The most remarkable one was the first entrepreneurship summer
programme in Hong Kong, partnered with European Innovation Academy,

aiming to develop Hong Kong into a global entrepreneurship education hub.

Hong Kong SMEs' well-being is always dear to our heart. We put on the shoulder
to support them with sterling technological and multi-spectrum services, ranging
from transformation of manufacturing and business models, funding scheme to
market diversification. Be it the Greater Bay Area (GBA) seminars, the Association
of Southeast Asian Nations (ASEAN) seminars or the series of guidebooks on
"Hong Kong's Reindustrialisation and ASEAN's Opportunities and Limitations in
Manufacturing’, all these initiatives served to widen local enterprises’search for new

business opportunities and sustain operations in rough times.

Funding is paramount to SMEs. HKPC, hence, continued to serve Hong Kong
industries with secretariat services for various funding schemes, e.g. BUD Fund,
Recycling Fund, the newly introduced Chinese Medicine Development Fund,
etc. The first-ever “SME One Fund Fair” — a one-stop platform providing local
SMEs with funding information - was undoubtedly an iconic event of the year,
achieving a great success with a huge turnout of about 12,000 times of visitors.
Besides, HKPC's thought-provoking studies and surveys, say “The Standard
Chartered Hong Kong SME Leading Business Index’, “The DHL Hong Kong Air
Trade Leading Index”, and “Research on Digital Transformation in Hong Kong
Business Sector”, to name a few, also served to engage industries with inspiring

business outlook for them to sketch their future development roadmaps.

Yet, this is far from enough. During the year, HKPC rolled out timely concessions
to support SMEs and startups to tide over the challenging time. A dedicated
service team “SME ReachOut” was also set up to proactively reach out to SMEs,

helping them identify funding schemes that best suit their needs.

Near the end of this financial year, global economy suffered a severe blow by
the COVID-19 outbreak, and Hong Kong was not immune. The bleak economic
outlook spurred us on to do more, and we could, for SMEs to sustain and remain
competitive in the market. Armed with the technology know-how and skillsets,
HKPC fast-tracked anti-pandemic measures, such as remote working tips
and over 100 webinars right after the Chinese New Year via the new Internet
broadcast initiative "HKPC Live’, to energise SMEs with technologies and market

intelligence when adapting to changes and new norms.
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HKPC's social responsibility effort was further amplified during the pandemic.
Being engaged as the Secretariat of the “Local Mask Production Subsidy
Scheme”, HKPC also facilitated the set-up of 50 local mask production lines in
just three months since February 2020. As many as 70 in-house technology
experts were deployed to draw upon their knowledge, burnishing the label of
“made in Hong Kong masks" The flexibility and capability of local SMEs have
reignited the possibility of reindustrialisation in Hong Kong.

While economic revitalisation holds for technologies and innovations,
commercialisation of R&D will undoubtedly become a new source of growth.
Riding on this tech trend, HKPC, in the year, debuted the “TechDive" programme
to showcase our ready-to-market inventions, keeping business sectors on top
of how these patented technologies can drive economic and social prosperity.
We will do more in this vein as it is conducive to generating new business

opportunities and making our city more liveable.

The battle ahead will not be without challenges and uncertainties, in light of the
raging pandemic. The only keyword for carving economic resilience is: “transformation’”.
HKPC vows to stand shoulder-to-shoulder with Hong Kong industries, serving as a
beacon to drive transformation and provide technology support in whatever way we
can. Along with the HKSAR Government’s funding and support measures, HKPC is
in full swing to help SMEs embark on their reindustrialisation journeys, fuelling Hong

Kong’s digital economy in the years to come.

Mohamed D. Butt
Executive Director
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Corporate Governance Structure

HKPC is a statutory organisation governed by the Hong Kong Productivity Council
Ordinance (Chapter 1116 of Laws of Hong Kong). HKPC is fully committed to
maintaining good corporate governance as it strongly believes that good corporate
governance is essential to accomplishing its public mission and meeting the
expectations of its stakeholders. HKPC attaches paramount importance to adopting
accountability, transparency, fairness and ethics as the cornerstones of its corporate
governance framework.
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Corporate Governance

The Council

The Council is HKPC's governing body, providing strategic leadership in the fulfilment
of the organisation's functions.

The Council comprises not more than 23 Members appointed by the HKSAR
Government, of whom not more than five shall be public officers. Among the non-
official members (who represent management, labour and professional or academic
interests), a Chairman and a Deputy Chairman shall be appointed.

The Chairman, and other Members, of the Council are non-executive in nature. In the
year under review, the Council convened four meetings. The attendance records of
individual members are available on page 24.

On an annual basis, the Council approves HKPC's Three-Year Forecast, the detailed
Programme and Estimates of HKPC, and the Three-year Strategic Plan.

Council Members’ Responsibility for the Accounts

Council Members acknowledge their responsibilities for ensuring that the preparation
of the annual accounts of HKPC is in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards.

The statement of the Auditor of HKPC about their reporting responsibilities on
the accounts of HKPC is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report and Financial
Statements.

Council’s Committees

Four Committees have been set up under the auspices of the Council, to look after
different aspects of Council business: the Audit Committee, the Finance Committee,
the Staffing Committee and the Business Development Committee. All the
Committees are accountable to the Council.

The minutes of the Council and Committees (except discussion items containing
commercially sensitive or confidential information and the minutes of the Audit
Committee) are made available on a non-attributable basis on the HKPC website.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established to monitor and make recommendations
to enhance HKPC's healthy corporate governance in financial reporting, risk
management, internal control, appointment and performance of the external auditor,
and compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The Committee is authorised by
the Council to investigate any activity and resolve any disagreement within its scope
of duties.

Staff members can directly report to the Chairman of the Audit Committee on cases
of malpractice or irregularities. The Committee is underpinned by an Internal Audit
and Risk Management Office, which reports functionally to the Audit Committee and
administratively to the Executive Director. The Office is committed to assisting the
Audit Committee to safeguard and promote healthy corporate governance of HKPC.

The Audit Committee is chaired by a Council member and currently has six members.
It met three times during the year in review.

£ENR HKPC
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Chairman

Mr Patrick Wong Chi-kwong

Members

Mr Marvin Hsu Tsun-fai
Ms Mandy Kwok Man-yee
Mr Paul Poon Wai-yin
Ms Karmen Yeung Ka-yin
Ms Rebecca Pun Ting-ting, Jp
Mr Mohamed D. Butt
As at 31 March 2020

Finance Committee

The Finance Committee monitors the financial performance of HKPC and ensures that
funds made available are properly accounted for. The Committee approves changes
to HKPC's policies and practices relating to procurement, building management, fixed
asset management, charging levels of HKPC's services and investment strategy and
guidelines.

The Committee recommends HKPC's three-year forecast, an annual programme
and estimates and the transfer of funds between major heads of expenditure, for
consideration by the Council. The Committee also advises the Council on matters
relating to HKPC's financial policies and matters that have a significant financial impact
on HKPC.

The Finance Committee is chaired by a Council member and currently has seven
members. It met three times during the year in review.

Chairman

Mr Wilson Fung Ying-wai

Members

Prof John Chai Yat-chiu, Jp
Mr Felix Chow Bok-hin

Mr Marvin Hsu Tsun-fai

Ms Karmen Yeung Ka-yin
Mr Andrew Au Sik-hung, Jp
Miss Kathy Chan Nap-sze
Mr Mohamed D. Butt

As at 31 March 2020
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Staffing Committee

The Staffing Committee approves the appointment of General Managers. The
Committee monitors the staffing situation and recommends changes to the Council
where appropriate. It advises the Council on human resources development policies.
The Committee also monitors HKPC's general terms and conditions of service, to
ensure that these are adequate to recruit and retain competent staff, and recommends
changes to the Council where necessary. The Committee provides a channel between
the Council and staff members for the communication of grievances about general
terms and conditions of service, in situations where they cannot be resolved by
consultation.

The Staffing Committee is chaired by a Council member and currently
has nine members. It met three times during the year in review.

Chairman

Mr Sunny Tan

Members

Ms Mandy Kwok Man-yee

Ms Amy Lee Sau-king

Ms Juan Leung Chung-yan, MH
Mr Li Hoi

Mr Patrick Wong Chi-kwong

Mrs Carrie Yau Tsang Ka-lai, GBS, Jp
Miss Mabel Li Po-vi, 1p

Miss Kathy Chan Nap-sze

Mr Mohamed D. Butt

As at 31 March 2020
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Business Development Committee

The Business Development Committee reviews the business activities of HKPC,
explores new business opportunities, and recommends the three-year strategic plan
of HKPC to the Council. The Committee also monitors the performance of HKPC's
subsidiary companies.

The Business Development Committee is chaired by a Council member and currently
has seven members. It met three times during the year in review.

Chairman

Mr Emil Yu Chen-on, Jp

Members

Ms Clara Chan Yuen-shan, MH
Mr Felix Chow Bok-hin

Mr Steve Chuang Tzu-hsiung
Mr Paul Poon Wai-yin

Prof Tam Kar-yan, MH

Miss Kathy Chan Nap-sze

Mr Mohamed D. Butt

As at 31 March 2020

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Council considers it is highly important to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance and enhance the organisation’s transparency and accountability to the
public. The external and internal audit systems are instrumental in this regard.

External Audit

The Council has appointed BDO Limited as the external auditor, to conduct an audit of
its financial statements.

The external audit plays an important role in reviewing the financial statements as
well as strengthening the internal controls of HKPC. Before an audit commences, the
external auditor discusses the nature and scope of the audit with the Audit Committee,
if necessary, together with any matters the external auditor may wish to discuss in the
absence of management. Any management letter from the external auditor and HKPC
management’s response will be reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Internal Audit and Risk Management

The Council’s Internal Audit and Risk Management Office ("ARQ") is directed by the
Audit Committee of HKPC, to assist the management team with the Council’s risk
management function.

ARO proactively identifies and examines any area of risk in HKPC operations, and
proposes appropriate internal control measure in line with the mandates for corporate
governance. ARO also formulates and executes an overall audit policy and strategy
for the Council to safeguard its assets, ensure compliance with relevant laws and
regulations, promote operational efficiency and effectiveness, and ensure the accuracy
and reliability of its records.

The Office reports directly to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. At every Audit
Committee meeting, the Office reports to the Committee its findings on the auditing
of control sufficiency and the compliance situation for different HKPC operations.

In the year under review, the ARO reported the audit results of the operations
spanning various aspects of HKPC. The audit job plans were reviewed and agreed by
the Audit Committee in advance.

Internal Control

To ensure an effective system of internal control is in place, HKPC management has
also performed the following tasks during the reporting period:

Reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control and reported to the
Council through a review of the findings and recommendations, as set out in the
reports of the internal audit;

Reviewed the resources for all divisions during the annual Programme and
Estimates exercise;

Conducted frequent reviews of the business, external environment and significant
risks as part of the annual Programme and Estimates exercise; and

Met with external auditors together with the Audit Committee Chairman to
report on any control weaknesses and the effectiveness of financial reporting
and compliance, as discussed during the meeting of the Audit Committee.

Transparency

In accordance with the requirements of the HKPC Ordinance, HKPC's Annual Report,
with the statement of accounts and the auditor’s report, is tabled at the Legislative
Council each year. To enhance transparency, the annual emoluments of all senior
executives in the top two tiers of HKPC management are disclosed under Note 23 to
the financial statements on page 44 of the full audited accounts.

The attendance of Members in Council and Committees is detailed on page 24.

Since November 2009, the minutes of the Council and Committees (except discussion
items containing commercially sensitive or confidential information and the minutes
of the Audit Committee) have been made available on a non-attributable basis on the
HKPC website.

£ENR HKPC
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Separately, the Council adopted a two-tier reporting system for declarations of interest
by Council Members, who are required to disclose upon first appointment and
annually thereafter, any proprietorships, partnerships or directorships of companies.
They are also required to disclose remunerated employments, offices, trades,
professions or vocations as well as shareholdings in companies, public or private
(amounting to 1% or more of the company’s issued share capital).

The register of declarations is made available for public inspection upon request.
Furthermore, Members are required, as soon as practicable after they have become
aware of it, to disclose to the Chairman (or the Council) their interest in any matter
under consideration by the Council prior to the discussion.

To further enhance governance, a Code of Conduct based on the Independent
Commission Against Corruption’s “Sample of Code of Conduct for Members of
Public Bodies"is applicable to all Council Members. The objective of the Code is to
communicate HKPC's values and standards of behaviour to which Members should
adhere in the discharge of their duties.

It also provides a framework for determining appropriate actions and making
appropriate decisions for situations which Members have commonly encountered,
such as advantages and entertainment offered, conflict of interest foreseen, and so on.
Specifically, the Code of Conduct includes five major categories: Prevention of Bribery,
Conflict of Interest, Misuse of Official Position, Confidentiality of Information, and
Indebtedness.

Whistleblowing

The Council has a whistleblowing policy to provide the wider public with reporting
channels and guidance on whistleblowing. Persons who have legitimate concerns
regarding any irregularity, misconduct or malpractice by the Council or any staff
member may raise the matter directly through mail or a dedicated email address
(whistleblowing@hkpc.org) to the Audit Committee (AC) Chairman of the Council.
Only persons who are designated by the AC Chairman will have access to such emails
or correspondence.

The AC Chairman will review each complaint and decide how it should be addressed.
This may involve nominating an appropriate investigating officer or setting up of a
special committee to conduct an independent investigation into the matter.
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Safety and Security Governance

Safety and security remain a priority of the Council. HKPC is committed to providing
and preserving an inherently safe and healthy work environment for all staff and
stakeholders.

In February 2020, HKPC continued to be awarded the 1SO45001 certification. In an
effort to persistently enhance the occupational safety and health (OSH) system,
HKPC kept formulating and reviewing the safety measures to cope with the latest
development in operations. In addition, HKPC established and implemented a series
of preventive measures and enhanced relevant facilities in light of the COVID-19
pandemic and social activities within the year, reducing the safety risks of all staff and
stakeholders so that they could engage in their core businesses without worries.

Internal Communications and Staff Engagement

HKPC strives to become a learning organisation and cultivate employees so that they
can unleash their potential to seek high performance.

HKPC introduced two programmes to grow employees into future leaders by
enhancing their management competencies: (1) The SEED programme for the officer
grades, (2) The GROW programme for the managerial grades. These programmes were
composed of modular learning and group projects to equip employees with skills in
areas relating to consultancy services, project management, financial management,
crisis management, leadership and communication. In the course of trainings,
employees collaborated on group projects, applying the skills acquired under
mentorship.

HKPC is committed to nurturing the young generation. The Reverse Mentoring
programme has been organised for the second year, with senior executives pairing
with and mentored by younger employees to build a mutually beneficial partnership.
Through this, mentors shared with senior executives the new trends and innovative
ideas. In return, they learnt valuable organisational and leadership skills from their
mentees which widened their horizons. The partnership helped grow each other on
various fronts.

HKPC promotes staff engagement culture and aims to build an innovative, energetic
and highly motivated workforce for the sake of accelerating business development.
We organised a range of team building programmes based on experiential learning to
foster collaboration and strengthen employees’sense of belonging to HKPC.

HKPC vows to enhance internal communication, encouraging exchanges and
collaboration among employees. Town hall meetings were held to share with all staff
the corporate strategic business direction and policy updates. Roundtables were
organised between Executive Director and employees at different grades, building a
platform for exchanging views, inspiring innovation and pursuing improvement.

£ENR HKPC
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EREREBRESERHELE

Council and Standing Committee Meeting Attendance Record

BEE WASH EBRE MB  HE

4/2019 - 3/2020

Council SC BDC FC AC
MERIAE, oss, e Mr Willy Lin Sun-mo, s, Jp 4/4 1/1
oy e Mr Patrick Wong Chi-kwong 4/4 3/3 3/3
BRBEIR, Prof John Chai Yat-chiu, 4/4 3/3
ReR M 22 1=, MH Ms Clara Chan Yuen-shan, mH 2/4 2/3
gﬁ(ﬁﬁg&;:a/%/zo1 9) Mr(:i\ o ;h 2019 303 12 22
ABE L Mr Felix Chow Bok-hin 3/4 1/3 23
HFEE Mr Steve Chuang Tzu-hsiung - >
(F11/1/2020) (from 1/1/2020)
IR AE Mr Wilson Fung Ying-wai 3/4 3/3
REBELE Mr Marvin Hsu Tsun-fai iy " ”
(1 1/1/2020) (from 1/1/2020)
BHELZL Ms Mandy Kwok Man-yee 3/4 3/3 3/3
BEELLE Mr Paul Poon Wai-yin 4/4 3/3 3/3
SPITEIE T 8BS, MH, P Dr Allen Shi Lop-tak, B8s, MH, P 23 "
(2 31/12/2019) (till 31/12/2019)
B 5 AFIR, v Prof Tam Kar-yan, MH 3/4 2/3
BRAEIESEE Mr Sunny Tan 4/4 2/3
LB REEL T, ces, P Mrs Carrie Yau Tsang Ka-lai, GBs, Jp 3/4 2/3
SR Ms Karmen Yeung Ka-yin 4/4 2/3 3/3
TELELE » Mr Emil Yu Chen-on, p 4/4 33
FEFLLT Ms Amy Lee Sau-king 4/4 2/3
2208 B 224 wH Ms Juan Leung Chung-yan, mH 4/4 3/3
e Mr Li Hoi 2/4 1/3
B EREE S ENEES Permanent Secretary for Innovatioh
HRRES and Technology or his/her alternative 4/4
members
Commissioner for Innovation and
AR EZEESNHIRHES Technology or his/her alternative 4/4 3/3 3/3 3/3 3/3
members
e T
BISERBNSLRERER oo Feonomistorhis/her 4/4 3
simmesEE  Thlmemeiws
BEBLEENRERER Executive Director of HKPC 3/3 33 3/3 33

BEEE -BEEEERES  XBRE -XEBREZES WK -MERS S i -EBrR88

SC - Staffing Committee, BDC — Business Development Committee, FC — Finance Committee, AC — Audit Committee
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FEWEET
Key Performance Indicators

2019-20 2019-20
(EPE) (B4&) 2018/19 2017/18 2016/17
(Actual) (Target)

ARFEHe it

Service Delivery

FREE®A i iv
Number of consultancy projects 639 840 889 699 948
HIREEE AR

Number of training course participants

6,065 3,000 6,079 6,196 4,198
RE /ERE /GRS NE A
Number of people attended exhibitions / study missions/ 5,790 4,000 4,039 4425 4,293

conferences

EERIE B A

Income from consultancy projects

3229 340.9 362.6 3424

EHIFREWA

Income from training courses

B8/ ERE / ZEWA 60 6.2 8.1 94

Income from exhibitions / study missions / conferences

BUESIRIAB WA

Income from manufacturing support projects

26.1 30.0 26.7 252

g S g
W
Effectiveness

EENREE/ XNES / RERTLSMEAR 19,9457 22000 28396 24,187 22,093
Number of people attended events / networking activities
for industry associations / free seminars

BEP MBI 9.0 8.8 9.1 9.0 9.0

Customer satisfaction index

BB mEIER 8.6 8.2 8.6 84 84

Training participants satisfaction index

T ERUEBIZARALEZRA (i-iif) Reasons for KPIs not meeting targets (i-iii):
| BMREBHE -STSEENEREMNER - LEEHSHESAENTR | BEYERERN

Number of consultancy projects - focused on high value-added and impactful projects to address market demand for integrated solutions; pandemic dampened investment sentiment
i FIRBRWA - RERG S FAAEBEMEUE / T8

Income from training courses - classes cancelled / postponed due to social incidents and pandemic

i £ENRES / NES / REMNGSME AR - ZEBRERAFRERS

Number of people attended events / networking activities for industry associations / free seminars - physical gatherings halted during pandemic

v BT 20194 11 BEHT
Updated figure in November 2019 25
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Senior Management
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Mr Mohamed D. Butt
Executive Director

Mr Mohamed D. Butt has led HKPC since December 2017. He brought to the Council
with more than 30 years of executive leadership experience, well-practised senior
management skills and success cases from multinational environment, with deep industry
and customer knowledge in infrastructure, industrial and consumer sectors, backed by his
profound strategic mindset, rich business insights and remarkable winning track records.

Mr Butt previously spearheaded large transformational projects, in collaboration
with private and public sectors. He worked for General Electric (GE) for over two
decades, where he held various senior management positions including President
& CEO of GE's Transportation Business in the Asia Pacific region, provided strategic
leadership to have expanded the business footprints. Before such role, he also
served as President & CEO of GE Lighting Asia and GE Security Asia respectively.

Mr Butt graduated from Winona State University, Minnesota, US, with a Bachelor of
Science degree in Business Administration. He also received his Master in Business
Administration from Kellogg School of Management and the Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology.

Dr Lawrence Cheung Chi-chong
Chief Innovation Officer

Dr Lawrence Cheung Chi-chong joined HKPC in 1996. He has more than 25
years of experience in research and development, consultancy and business. He
manages a broad business portfolio on technological research and development
as well as consultancy services in automotive, smart electronics, robotics and
automation, medical devices, environmental management, smart materials and
manufacturing technology, and testing services.

Prior to joining HKPC, Dr Cheung held a senior research post at the
Commonwealth Scientific and Industrial Research Organisation (CSIRO) of
Australia. He obtained a doctorate degree, and Bachelor of Engineering (with
honours) and Bachelor of Science degrees from Monash University in Australia.

Mr Edmond Lai Shiao-bun
Chief Digital Officer

Mr Edmond Lai Shiao-bun joined HKPC in 2018 to lead the digital transformation,
smart manufacturing and Mainland businesses of HKPC. Mr Lai is an expert in
Industry 4.0 (i4.0) and Enterprise 4.0 (e4.0) business transformation, as well as
digital product development, with experience in local and overseas market
development.

Prior to joining HKPC, Mr Lai worked in General Electric (GE) for more than 20
years. He successfully completed the management trainee programme in the
information technology department of the multinational company, and then had
also served in their internal audit and finance functions. He also spearheaded his
expertise across other business units, such as aviation, capital, healthcare, plastics,
power, transportation, etc., among various regions including Greater China,
Australia, Japan, Singapore, Switzerland, the United States, etc. He also assumed
regional and global responsibilities to drive the business growth for various
industries, such as energy storage, mining, marine, rail, renewable energy, thermal
power generation, etc.

Mr Lai held the Bachelor of Engineering (Computer Engineering) and Master of
Philosophy (Computer Science) degrees from the University of Hong Kong.
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Organisation Structure

ko

Executive Director

/N HREER &R
Executive Director Office Technology Development Digital Branch

(EDO) Branch (TDB) (DTB)
ERBRED REREFE ISR

Automotive and Electronics
Division (AED)

Digital Transformation

4( Division (DTD) /

Corporate Development

Division (CDD) J

N

-

ﬁﬂ

B8 B RS D AERRREPD HHERER b TP
. = Automotive Platforms and Smart Manufacturing and
Finance and Procurement S . . g
Division (FPD) Application Systems R&D Centre Mainland Business Division
(APAS) (SMD)
ANERRYZEZEEIRE IRIEEIEED ez o
— Human Resources and Facility Environmental Management Busi Devel ! t Unit (BDU
Management Division (HFD)J Division (EMD) J L )

~

EIFEAE
Management Consulting

Division (MCD) J

BEEEWERE

Council Secretariat (CS)

BaTE

J

K AEBEET R AR

EIEMWNE
Internal Audit and Risk
Management Office (ARO)*
* WAEMETERESTRERER BZE 2020438310
Functionally reports to Audit Committee Chairman As at 31 March 2020
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Subsidiaries
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Productivity (Holdings) Limited and Wholly Foreign Owned
Enterprises in the PRD

The Productivity (Holdings) Limited was established on 28 July 2003, with the objective
of promoting productivity excellence through the provision of integrated support
across the value chain of Hong Kong firms operating in the Pearl River Delta (PRD).

This objective is achieved through two Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprises (WFOEs) in the
PRD - Productivity (Dongguan) Consulting Co. Ltd,, and Productivity (Shenzhen) Consulting
Co. Ltd. incorporated in 2004.

Productivity (Holdings) Limited
Board of Directors

Mr Willy Lin (Chairman of the Board), Mr Mohamed D. Butt, Ms Rebecca Pun,
Mr Sunny Tan, Mr Patrick Wong and Mr Emil Yu.

Productivity (Dongguan) Consulting Co. Ltd.
Board of Directors

Mr Edmond Lai (Chairman of the Board), Mr Mohamed D. Butt, Dr Lawrence Cheung,
Mr Terrence He, Ms Vivian Lin and Mr Jeffrey Sit.

Productivity (Shenzhen) Consulting Co. Ltd.
Board of Directors

Mr Edmond Lai (Chairman of the Board), Mr Mohamed D. Butt, Dr Lawrence Cheung,
Mr Terrence He, Ms Vivian Lin and Mr Jeffrey Sit.

HKPC Technology (Holdings) Co. Ltd.

HKPC Technology (Holdings) Co. Ltd. (HKPCT) was established on 1 September 2004
as a vehicle for the commercialisation of HKPC's patents, technologies and project
deliverables with market potential, as well as an entity entering into contracts on con-
sultancy and support services to enterprises. The Company aims to develop a new
technology-based generation through providing a more direct and effective avenue
to turn R&D deliverables into products.

During the year, three marketing events were held to promote 11 technologies
developed by HKPC that are ready for commercialisation with industry. The events
drew participants from 97 companies. Indications of interest were followed up to
transfer the technology solutions to industry, so that more sectors could benefit from
HKPC's development effort.

Board of Directors

Mr Willy Lin (Chairman of the Board), Mr Mohamed D. Butt, Mr Paul Poon,
Ms Rebecca Pun and Mr Patrick Wong.

As at 31 March 2020
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Financial Review

HREENRERKENB AR EE 2020 F
3831 BIEN2FFAERERMNEREE &
BB MEZMERAR Bt
WEREREESERS - KEMBRILE
FEWCIRE Mira 2 HRARENER -

The consolidated accounts for the year ended 31 March 2020 of Hong Kong
Productivity Council and its subsidiaries have been audited by BDO Limited with a
clean audit opinion. Extracts of the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position,
Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account, and Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income are set out in the following pages.
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Financial Review

fn e MR

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
2020 & 3 B 31 H 31 March 2020

2020 2019
BT T BIETIT
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FEREEE Non-current assets
YIZE ~ BRE AR Property, plant and equipment 208,343 220,069
M EE Intangible assets 7,891 6,446
FREEE Right-of-use assets 1,871 =
e/ AR Interest in an associate - 1559
218,105 228074
MENERE Current assets
FEWER SR ~ TAERIE figs Accounts receivable, prepayments and deposits 132,723 118,387
BNEE Contract assets 63,360 40,517
AR EIHIE Tax refundable 2 _
B&  RITERNEHRER Cash, bank balances, and fixed deposits 607,150 408,113
803,235 567,017
REEE Current liabilities
FEREREF N EER Accounts payable and accruals 99,293 108,858
aaE Contract liabilities 438,243 247,358
N UNGIENE] Amount due to associate - 1,098
HEaE Lease liabilities 483 =
FENTFIR Tax payable 122 6
538,141 357,320
RENEEFE Net current assets 265,094 209,697
BEERRIEE Total assets less current liabilities 483,199 437,771
FEREER Non-current liabilities
HE&E&E Lease liabilities 1,436 B
FEE Net assets 481,763 437,771
BEE Total funds
EENREIEEAREBENHE  Capital subvention fund and reserves 480,064 435,736
attributable to the Council
JEIE AR A B e Non-controlling interests 1,699 2,035
wWES Total funds 481,763 437,771

3 ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20
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Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account

#Z2 2020 &£ 3 A 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2020

RI#sERE

Financial Review

2020 2019
BT 7T BT IT
HK$'000 HKS$'000
WA Income
R MESEEINBUTEBY Government subvention for recurrent activities 237,362 239,424
RIS Service income 470,359 468,285
HAKA Other income 13,881 13,906
i = t/N=IR N Share of profit of an associate - 6
721,602 721,621
S Expenditure
B E5E Staff emoluments (371,420) (348,530)
HihH Other expenses (304,948) (300,224)
fRM B B ER Surplus before tax 45,234 72,867
BT854 Income tax expense (147) (251)
45,087 72,616
WERERSEA Transfer from capital subvention fund 8,375 12,147
FRRER Surplus for the year 53,462 84,763
BN Attributable to:
AENR The Council 53,676 84,298
JEER RS S R Non-controlling interests (214 465
53,462 84,763

A ENR HKPC
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Financial Review

meEElaR

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
#,% 2020 £ 3 A 31 HIEHFE Year ended 31 March 2020

2020 2019
AT BT
HK$'000 HKS'000
FRBER Surplus for the year 53,462 84,763
Hih2EEE Other comprehensive loss
FRENEBEFRFEEZEN  Other comprehensive loss that may be reclassified to
FIRENHEMEEEE income and expenditure account in subsequent
periods:
B A REMEZEF  Exchange diffewrences on translation of financial (1,095) (807)
BRENEREE Statements of operations in the People’s Republic of
China
FEREMESEEE (RE) Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (1,095) (807)
FREZEPEEE Total comprehensive income for the year 52,367 83,956
BB Attributable to:
AEDR The Council 52,703 83,600
JEIE R A R e 2 Non-controlling interests (336) 356
52,367 83,956
32
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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EENRB HKPC

TO THE MEMBERS OF HONG KONG PRODUCTIVITY COUNCIL
(Incorporated in Hong Kong under the Hong Kong Productivity Council Ordinance)

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of Hong Kong Productivity Council (the “Council”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 4 to 52, which comprise the consolidated
and the Council's statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020, and the consolidated
and the Council's income and expenditure account, the consolidated statement of changes
in funds and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Group and the Council as at 31 March 2020, and of the Group and the Council’s
financial performance and the Group’s cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the Hong Kong Productivity Council Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

INDEPENDENCE

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the "Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

OTHER MATTER

The financial statements of the Council for the year ended 31 March 2019, were audited
by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 6
September 2019.

RESPOSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT OF THE COUNCIL FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management of the Council are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Productivity Council Ordinance, and for such internal control as management
of the Council determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management of the Council are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management of the Council either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Management of the Council are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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AR P ClIE S
Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 18 of the Hong Kong Productivity Council Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management of the
Council.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

EENRB HKPC
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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EENRB HKPC

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Tam Kwok Yiu
Practicing Certificate No. P02575

&8 ,20208E7H29H
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2020 £ 3 A 31 H 31 March 2020

2020 2019
f&E BT BT IT
Note HKS$’000 HK$'000
FFiRENEE Non-current assets
MZE ~ R TIRE Property, plant and equipment 6 208,343 220,069
B EE Intangible assets 7 7,891 6,446
FREEE Right-of-use assets 16 1,871
/N TR Interest in an associate 9 - 1,559
218,105 228,074
MENEE Current assets
FEUSERK ~ TANIB RIZS Accounts receivable, prepayments and deposits 10 132,723 118,387
BREE Contract assets 11 63,360 40,517
AREIFIE Tax refundable 26(c) 2 -
B~ RITEREEBRER Cash, bank balances, and fixed deposits 12 607,150 408,113
803,235 567,017
mEEE Current liabilities
FERR S ESTER Accounts payable and accruals 13 99,293 108,858
BRERE Contract liabilities 14 438,243 247,358
FENBE/ATIFIE Amount due to associate 15 = 1,098
HEaE Lease liabilities 17 483 -
FENRLIE Tax payable 26(c) 122 6
538,141 357,320
mBEERE Net current assets 265,094 209,697
BEERTHAEE Total assets less current liabilities 483,199 437,771
JERENEE Non-current liabilities
HEEE Lease liabilities 17 1,436 -
FEE Net assets 481,763 437,771
wEs Total funds
S ENREEERER S KR Capital subvention fund and reserves 480,064 435,736
attributable to the Council
FEERE I SR i Non-controlling interests 18(d) 1,699 2,035
wES Total funds 18 481,763 437,771

EEABR 20204 7 B 29 ARELFF RIS -
Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 29 July 2020.

HEE BEEk

Willy Lin Sun-mo Patrick Wong Chi-kwong
IE B

Chairman Deputy Chairman

12 25 52 BNNEBAYEIREN—ED

The notes on pages 12 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.

EENRB HKPC
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RIFFRRER

Statement of Financial Position

2020 & 3 A 31 H 31 March 2020

2020 2019
& BET T AT
Note HKS$'000 HK$'000
JEiRENEE Non-current assets
L EN IR Property, plant and equipment 6 207,623 219,099
R EE Intangible assets 7 7,847 6,384
FRREEE Right-of-use assets 16 1,694 -
RRBATNKRE Investments in subsidiaries 8 18,722 18,722
235,886 244,205
MENEE Current assets
FEWEBESR ~ FTE(TERIE RIRS Accounts receivable, prepayments and deposits 10 131,738 117,886
BREE Contract assets Il 63,360 40,517
e B ARIFRIA Amounts due from subsidiaries 15 1,169 1,136
BRe  RITEANEHER Cash, bank balances, and fixed deposits 12 589,056 387,540
785,323 547,079
mENBE Current liabilities
FESERA N EETE R Accounts payable and accruals 13 98,490 105,241
BHEaE Contract liabilities 14 438,082 247,343
HE&E Lease liabilities 17 402 -
FERHBARZIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 15 11,841 11,132
548,815 363,716
mBEERE Net current assets 236,508 183,363
MEERTHEE Total assets less current liabilities 472,394 427,568
FFiREIEE Non-current liabilities
HE&E Lease liabilities 17 1,332 -
FEE Net assets 471,062 427,568
HEs Total funds 18 471,062 427,568
SENBIR 2020 F 7 B 29 HROEWFTAIEE L ©
Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 29 July 2020.
HER EEK
Willy Lin Sun-mo Patrick Wong Chi-kwong
FE BIEE
Chairman Deputy Chairman

12 2% 52 BN BEAYBHRERN—ED

The notes on pages 12 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.

EENRB HKPC
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me R EEEIR
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Funds

#HZ 2020 F 3 B 31 HIEZEE Year ended 31 March 2020

BEREENR
Attributable to the Council
=t 1314004
=f KA gL
Capital B E RERE k] Non- EEHE
subvention Revenue Exchange Total controlling Total
fund reserve reserve BT interests funds
BETT BT BRI BRI BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2018E 4 A 1 BER At 1 April 2018 132718 260,643 2471 395,832 1679 397,511
BB BT BREER Effect of adoption of HKFRS 15 - (31,549 - (31,549) - (31,549)
155 E
R20185 4 A 1 BFR At 1 April 2018 132718 229,094 2471 364,283 1679 365,962
FARHK Surplus for the year - 84,298 - 84,298 465 84,763
FREMPESE Other comprehensive loss for the year:
BEREERREN Exchange difference on translation of - - (698) (698) (109) (807)
ERER financial statements of operations in
the PRC
EREERGEE Total comprehensive income for the year - 84,298 (698) 83,600 356 83,956
EXRESEE (M5 180) Movement in capital subvention fund (note (12,147) - - (12,147) - (12,147)
18 ()
R 20194 3 B 31 BIOAER At 31 March 2019 120571 313,392 1773 435,736 2,035 437,771
R2019F 48 1 BNES At 1 April 2019 120,571 313,392 1,773 435,736 2,035 437,771
FRBRE Surplus for the year - 53,676 - 53,676 (214) 53,462
FARMRENE Other comprehensive loss for the year:
BENREREEN Exchange difference on translation of - - (973) (973) (122) (1,095)
EnER financial statements of operations in
the PRC
FREWRETE Total comprehensive income for the year - 53,676 (973) 52,703 (336) 52,367
BAESEE (M 18@) Movement in capital subvention fund (note (8,375) = - (8,375) = (8,375)
18(a))
720204 3 A 31 HAVERR At 31 March 2020 112,196 367,068 800 480,064 1,699 481,763

EENRB HKPC
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i e SSZ Bk B

Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account

#HZE 2020 £ 3 A 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2020

2020 2019
& BET T AT
Note HKS$'000 HK$'000
A Income
RE MR EBD Government subvention for recurrent activities 19 237,362 239,424
FRFSUA Service income 20 470,359 468,285
E A Other income 21 13,881 13,906
FEL /AT FIE Share of profit of an associate 9 - 6
721,602 721,621
T Expenditure
BEHE Staff emoluments 22 (371,420) (348,530)
HithzH Other expenses 25 (304,948) (300,224)
FRiREIEmER Surplus before tax 45,234 72,867
FT87 Income tax expense 26(a) (147) (251)
45,087 72,616
WEBAREBHSEA Transfer from capital subvention fund 18(a) 8,375 12,147
FRELS Surplus for the year 53,462 84,763
ERE - Attributable to:
HYENR The Council 18(b) 53,676 84,298
FEE R AR Non-controlling interests 18(d) (214) 465
53,462 84,763

EENRB HKPC
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e EEN®R
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

# 2 2020 &£ 3 A 31 HIEFEE Year ended 31 March 2020

2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000

SR Surplus for the year 53,462 84,763
HfttZ g8 Other comprehensive loss
FHEREEEHRETIKNEIRBME  Other comprehensive loss that may be reclassified to income

fth2EESE - and expenditure account in subsequent periods:
HEhEARIMEZEFBREMNER  Exchange differences on translation of financial (1,095) (807)

=& Statements of operations in the People’s Republic of China
FRHEHMSEEE (i) Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (1,095) (807)
FAZEUEEE Total comprehensive income for the year 52,367 83,956
BER : Attributable to:

LENR The Council 52,703 83,600

IR A R Non-controlling interests (336) 356

52,367 83,956

EENRB HKPC
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e

Statement of Comprehensive Income

#HZE 2020 £ 3 A 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2020

2020 2019
Kbz BT AT
Note HKS$'000 HK$'000
A Income

REMEEEIN T E B Government subvention for recurrent activities 19 237,362 239,424
PRIZUIA Service income 20 465,995 459,189
HAA Other income 21 12,635 13,535
715,992 712,148

E-2a) Expenditure
liz4=EagcS Staff emoluments 22 (362,236) (340,544)
Hithz Other expenses 25 (310,262) (301,067)
43,494 70537
WERESEA Transfer from capital subvention fund 18(a) 8,375 12,147
FRRER REEU = Surplus and total comprehensive income 18(b) 51,869 82,684

for the year

EENRB HKPC
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

#2Z 2020 £ 3 B 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2020

2020 2019
(b BT BT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BETBMEENRERE Cash flows from operating activities
FRELRI & AR Surplus before tax 45,234 72,867
FARIE - Adjustments for:
FELBE A TFE Share of profit of an associate - ©)
FHiE—EBE AR Gain on deregistration of an associate 21 (13) -
FBUA Interest income 21 (3,154) (2,146)
HEaEFE Interest on lease liabilities 25 91 -
W~ BENRBENLESE Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 25 273 793
e Depreciation 25 48,742 43,899
e Amortisation 25 4,356 4,487
EEBEERE Provision for expected credit losses 10(a) 158 57
FHEH T B Provision for deregistration expenses - 348
CESRINZRERE Operating surplus before working capital
changes 95,687 120,299
FEMERSR ~ TR FRIB SRS 15N Increase in accounts receivable, prepayments and
deposits (14,466) (42,248)
BHNEE (38m) /B> (Increase)/decrease in contract assets (22,843) 4389
ZRRI[BIL N Increase in restricted cash (216,969) (37,940)
BREEEN Increase in contract liabilities 190,886 73,031
FE(TERFN N PEST & R R Decrease in accounts payable and accruals (9,885) (46,562)
KREEANIRS Cash generated from operations 22,410 70,969
EATHERZERMER PRC corporate income tax paid 26(c) (33) (552)
BEIHEENRENERTE Net cash flows from operating activities 22,377 70417
BREEHEENRERE Cash flows from investing activities
BEWFIE Interest received 3,154 2,146
FE=EA L LEEHER Increase in fixed deposits with original maturities
over 3 months when placed (394,729) (238,343)
=@ER L EEREREIBAMERIE Proceeds from matured fixed deposits with
original maturities over 3 months when placed 386,843 193,467
HEWE  BENREMEHE Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment 40 32
T — RS ARIPTERIE Proceed received on deregistration of an associate 387 -
HEEWE - BRENRE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (36,899) (43,435)
HERTEE Purchase of intangible assets (5,806) (2412)
BEEHEANREIRERE Net cash flows used in investing activities (47,010) (88,545)
& EEREIRE Cash flows from financing activities
BRHEAE Repayment of lease liabilities 17 (534) -
mMEEHERANREREREE Net cash used in financing activities (534) -
ReMREEEMRAFE Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (25,167) (18,128)
fﬁ%&fﬁég‘;ﬁ%%?ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 98,249 117,676
REFENZE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (652) (1,299)
REREEEEMHREEE Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 72,430 98,249
RERASEERTEINR Analysis of balances of cash and cash
equivalents
RITERNRS Cash at banks and on hand 12 72,430 98,249

EENRB HKPC
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Notes to the Financial Statements

#HZE 2020 £ 3 A 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2020

1. S£ENRMKEEH

BEBEENRER ( "TEENR. ) R—RBUTERH%
% R 1967 FRE (BBEENDRERKH) BRIz -
AED R MR RN E B AL MBI AT B
EE 78 SRAEEDKNIE -

LENDRIEWBAR (4% S8, ) NERXEE
RERBEEN - BEBIRUMFNAER - WimEH%
WERED ~ HESEA  REEERSABIAEL
ENHIENE -

MiBAREN
EEADRRBATNFENT

1. COUNCIL AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Council is a subvented body corporate established in 1967 under the Hong Kong
Productivity Council Ordinance, The address of its registered office and principal place of
operation is at HKPC Building, 78 Tat Chee Avenue, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Council and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) are to promote increased productivity, encourage the more efficient utilization
of resources, and to advise measures designed to increase productivity via development
or dissemination of programmes methods or techniques for the business sectors in Hong
Kong.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Council's subsidiaries are as follows:

& EEM IR BHEITR SEER HREE HIE EEXRH
EEhE, BEEX R NnEEE LFFFE  Principal
Place of Particulars Group's Held Heldby activities
incorporation of issued and effective by the subsidiaries
and operations paid up capital interest Council
EENIRE B 5 10,000 TT 100% 100% - AEBLEEIRERZE
(%) BRAT Hong Kong HK$10,000 FMIEE KRR R

HKPC Technology (Holdings)
Company Limited

LEN B
(#Z8) BRAR Hong Kong
Productivity

(Holdings) Limited

£EHN (%) i
FEABRAT PRC
Productivity (Dongguan)

Consulting Co. Ltd.

£EHD G AR
HBHABRAT PRC

Productivity (Shenzhen)
Consulting Co. Ltd.

FRBEEN F
EHARAT PRC

Shenzhen SZ-HK Productivity
Foundation Co. Ltd.

FYRBEED R
E AR AR PRC

Shenzhen SZ-HK
Productivity Foundation
Training Institute

EENRB HKPC

Commercialisation
of patents project
deliverables of HKPC

FEIE 20,000,000 7T 100% 100% - HEEK
HK$20,000,000 Investment holding
i 5,000,000 TT 100% - 100% AR R EEHIARIE
HKS$5,000,000 Consultancy and

training services

51,610,000 T 100% - 100%  EERIEEETIARTS
HK$1,610,000 Consultancy and

training services

AR 1,540,000 7T 64.94% - 100%  EERI LIRS
RMB1,540,000 Consultancy and
training services

AR 50,000 7T 64.94% - 1000 BRI
RMB50,000 Training services
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2. [ERSENERESER (FSEHFER
S¥R, )

(@) MERFEIRSEBIIESBMEREZED -H
2019 F 4 B 1 HEEER

REEAEE W ERTM T IHE MRERTE
VBRI S XERY

EHIIEHRE A Gzl
%16 9%
%’.’S%“r ] HEAMOCERAEY
%28 FIBETA R
é;‘%(l@%ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%s BEE IR AEEMCE
—2RE 23 3% i)

BRI X E R B E LIS 16 SRR B LR
R AT MBI BB B S SRR ERE A E
NERIERE  EBER NS BRUEERYELE

EEUEREEASE
F1658 )

16 5% FHE (" BB B REER

1E2019% 4 A1 Azal BERABFINESNRE
HEMRMESRESTAIH - 77201944 B 1 BERA
EBMIEHREERE 16 55 FIEHAE (KEENE
HMAERIN) EHBRRRTERAHEAREENHEE
8E  RMELEFNNSETBER (HEE4 (e) ) -

HEEREREBMHIMELERNSE 16 55 - KEBTE
RIS T A TRERE |

KEHEEREBERAEENE
NERER BEZIRMmERRA  DIFFEER
BEE: &

EANBS AR IAE
BAONRERETHES -

B REER > DFE

PR ERE  AEBEBREERSSMBRERENSE

16 ERIRABLBTEME  UHEEEAKETER

AEEE HEaER%K 2019F 4 81 BAZMIHHE

ENFEERE  WRIRERM 20194F4 A 1 HAYY
SERFEITR -

BAFEERZRMIZE
Notes to the Financial Statements

#.2 2020 F 3 A 31 HIEERE Year ended 31 March 2020

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ( “HKFRSs” )

(@)  Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - Effective 1 April 2019

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the first time for the
current year's financial statements.

HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKAS 28
HK(IFRIC) - Int 23

Leases
Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The impact of adoption of HKFRS 16 is explained below. The adoption of the other new/
revised HKFRSs does not have any material impact on the Group's or Council’s results and
state of affairs nor any substantial changes in the Group’s accounting policies.

HKFRS 16 Leases ("HKFRS 16")

Before 1 April 2019, lease payments for office premises were expensed on a straight line
basis over the lease term. On adopting HKFRS 16 on 1 April 2019, all leases (other than low-
value or short-term leases) are recognised in the statement of financial position as right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities, resulting in new accounting policies (note 4(e)).

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has used the following practical
expedients permitted by the standard:

Reliance on previous assessment on whether leases are onerous;

the exclusion of initial direct costs for the measurement of the right-of-use assets at
the date of initial application; and

the use of hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains
options to extend or terminate the lease.

On initial application, the Group chose to apply HKFR 16 under the modified retrospective
approach of measuring right-of-use assets at an amount based on the lease liabilities.
Lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the lease payments that were
unpaid on 1 April 2019 and discounted at the Group's incremental borrowing rate at 1 April
2019.

EENRB HKPC
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Notes to the Financial Statements

#HZE 2020 £ 3 A 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2020

2. EREEMBHRESER (TEHEMBR
S%8),) (B
(@) FMERFEIRASIEFTEEBFHREEE - A

2019 F 4 B 1 BHi#BER (&)

TREETHEZEBMHERELERSE 16 55H 2019 F
4 B 1 BEBIRRAIRE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
(@)  Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - Effective 1 April 2019 (continued)

The following table summarises the impact of transition to HKFRS 16 on the statement of
financial position as of 1 April 2019:

®H £ENB
b=l Em
The Group The Council
Increase Increase
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
JEiRENEE Non-current assets
FREEE Right-of-use assets 2,362 2118
IERBNE EAEER Total non-current assets 2,362 2,118
mENaE Current liabilities
HEaE Lease liabilities 443 383
JEREIEE Non-current liabilities
HEERE Lease liabilities 1919 1,735
BB Total liabilities 2,362 2,118

HZE2019F 481 8 HEENESWHRERE -

TRERNL2019F3 A 31 BIRETE DT ERE 17
SERERBAKEHEAIENR 201944 A1 BEMNSE
BTSRRI 10 SERFNAS B EVHE -

There is no impact on the Group’s funds as at 1 April 2019,

The following table shows the reconciliation from operating lease commitments disclosed
under HKAS 17 Leases as at 31 March 2019 to lease liabilities upon adoption of HKFRS 16 as
at 1 April 2019.

KE KE
b=}l Em
The Group The Group
Increase Increase
BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
F 20194 3 A 31 B2&EHEAIE  Operating lease commitments as at
31 March 2019 2,587 2,329
A R R B H Less: future interest expenses (225) (211
20194 A1 HzHEARE Lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 2,362 2,118

H2019F 4 1 BEMBEIRRKRPERNEESEMR
BRI TIEEEERN TR 5% -

14
EENRB HKPC

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities recognised in
the statement of financial position as at 1 April 2019 was 5%.
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2. EREBMBHEEN(TEEMHBER
H#RlL ) (8D

(b) EIEMEMREMZHET RAMEET EHE
RS ZER

O AR MY BRREMIHT / T B
BREEADCRBMRER  IREAEERER
A ASE BN EERIELRE AN B eERE
B -

ERUBREENE IR PEEBNES'
9/ET2'§
é}%u HERIE 1SR (B EEMMESR

.:TZF REBETHER
£ 85 (1B3]A)

1 72020 FF 1 A 1 Bz B FERRAER

BZE 202043 A 31 HIEFE  AEEHRAELER
HEMRE RN E BT R EER N EET Y ST
i WIBRH R A R A S W AR BV M AR
MELEBATE -

3. REEE
(@) B

$%A%%ﬁ§%ﬁF§%ﬁ%%@§%%m§%%%
BEER (BEMETEMEREED  FhR e

K@) ~ BBAREFRA TD%%EF?J{E EREB
AREd

(b) #REITERIERAVMREIEE
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REGTT L

Evp et e hEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

#.Z 2020 F 3 A 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2020

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b)  New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective

The following new / revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the Group's financial
statements, have been issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early adopted
by the Group. The Group’s current intention is to apply these changes on the date they
become effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business'
Amendments to HKAS | Definition of Material'

and HKAS 8
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group performed a preliminary assessment
on the impact of the adoption of these issued but not yet effective HKFRSs, and expected
no significant impact to the Group's results of operations and financial position upon
adoption.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(@)  Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Hong Kong Productivity Council Ordinance.

(b)  Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis, under the historical cost convention and are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HKS") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except where otherwise
indicated.

EENRB HKPC
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Notes to the Financial Statements

#HZE 2020 £ 3 A 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2020
3. REEE (&)

O feaEEzEE

HEUBBRREBELENREENBAR (B8 "%
) #E 2020 £ 3 B 31 HIEMFEMBRE - WE
ATRHEREENREENEEEGINER (BRERIT
i) - EXREAREHERETN2EPIRESEYR
i SRR IIERS - BRREAENEIRET
PEbEra2tEls (ARTEREREERKRES
ZIBEDEBIRE MR AER ) - AISEESEGHE -

B AR M R RRENERE B REEENRER
BERANERETREETRE - WEARDNMBHRES
RUEBEERZGI R R AH R BE
o

WS ME M2 EW SRS RERD BB L EDRMIE
ZRRRERES B SRR R R AL RS -
FrEEERNEEMERE » #1 WA~ THNEEKRE
B BN R ZEBENR NS EAHS2EEE -

WREFAEHINBEATMIEGIE » AIEZLLHRUT
AR (i) MBARNEE (BFEME) Ma&E - (i)
EAISE RIS ARE SR - M i) sTARIRH
SEE AR WS (1) BEINRENAREE @ (i)
ARRBRENAREE M (i) FAEBCIRERE
EMERESFER - SR ZARTAE 2 EREAIAE
BB R HEEE D RERS R EAE - BHE
EE N EAEEENE ERTERNKERR -

L EARPBIRNEMRNBATNKRE - REBRA
BEBERERNR

4. EETEBRME

(@) FFIERRRRERIEL

JFER R RS IR B AR P E AR
HAENRZEMNRSNE  MAEELRBH
BRI AR SLERBEIMES - {EMBH
AR AEEERN ELEREERASREE
EENENERE - WREEAN - AEFEREE
REBAREESIZLOIBIERB AT T HBFE
BN - BEMIFERIERSRETTE -
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(c)  Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Council and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2020.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Council. Control is achieved when the Group has power over investee, is exposed or
has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e, existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period
as the Council, using consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Income and expenditure and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the Council and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained
and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in the income and expenditure account. The Group’'s
share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to the income and expenditure account or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

In the Council's statement of financial position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated at
cost less impairment losses.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)  Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the Council, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business combination, the
Group can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at
their proportionate share of the subsidiary's net identifiable assets.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(@ Non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position
within total funds, separately from funds attributable to the Council. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated income
and expenditure account and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total surplus or deficit and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the Council. Changes in the Group's interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as reserve transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated total funds to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

(b)  Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither
a subsidiary nor a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but not control or joint control
over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method whereby they are initially recognised
at cost and thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted for the Group's share of the post-
acquisition change in the associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of the Group's
interest in the associate are not recognised unless there is an obligation to make good
those losses.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group's interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in the income and expenditure account. Any interest retained in that former
investee at the date when significant influence is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the Group's share of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included
in the carrying amount of the associate. Where there is objective evidence that the
investment in an associate has been impaired, the carrying amount of the investment is
tested for impairment in the same way as other non-financial assets.

In the Council’s statement of financial position, investments in associates are carried at cost
less impairment losses, if any. The results of associates are accounted for by the Council on
the basis of dividends received and receivable during the year.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c)  Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Hong Kong Productivity Council Building ("HKPC Building") 50 years
Leasehold improvements

- Office 10 years
- Non-office 3 years

Furniture and equipment 3to 10 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in the income and expenditure account
on the date of retirement or disposal.

(d) Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise computer software. Computer software costs are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software and
are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. Amortisation of computer software is charged to the income and
expenditure account on a straight-line basis over the assets'estimated useful lives of 3 years.

(e)  Leases (accounting policies applied from 1 April 2019)

The Group as a lessee

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost (which comprises the initial measurement
of lease liabilities, initial direct costs, reinstatement costs, any payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received), and subsequently at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used. Generally, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. The lease liability is subsequently
increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased by lease payments made.

Payments associated with short-term leases (i.e,, leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less) and low value leases are recongised on a straight-line basis as expenses in the income
and expenditure account.

The Group as a lessor

Rental income is recognised in the income and expenditure account on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on the straight-line basis over the lease term.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f)  Leases (accounting policies applied until 31 March 2019)

The Group as a lessee

Leases were classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the leasee. All other leases were
classified as operating leases.

The total rentals payable under operating leases were recognised in the income and
expenditure account on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives received
were recognised as an integrated part of the total rental expense, over the term of the
lease.

The Group as a lessor

Rental income from operating leases was recognised in the income and expenditure
account on straight-line method over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease were added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on straight-line method over the
lease term.

(g) Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investment in equity securities

Investments in equity securities that are stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment, which includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

- Significant financial difficulty of the investee;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments by the investee;

- it becoming probable that the investee will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the investee; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in the investee
below its cost.

For investments in subsidiaries and an associate (including those recognised using the
equity method), the impairment loss is measured by comparing the recoverable amount
of the investment with its carrying amount. The impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount in
accordance with note 4(qg)(iii).
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of accounts receivable

The Group assesses an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL") for all debts instruments
stated at cost or amortised cost. ECL are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate.
The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other
credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECL are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECL are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month
ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

Simplified approach

For accounts receivable that do not contain a significant financing component or when the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECL. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises
a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date. The Group has established
an allowance matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

#.Z 2020 F 3 A 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2020

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(9) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and
value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows independently of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generates cash flows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the income and expenditure account if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which its belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal, or value-in-use, if determinable.

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the income and
expenditure account in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

(h)  Receivables

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.

(i) Accounts payable and accruals

Accounts payable and accruals are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(j)  Cashand cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months of original maturities when
placed.

(k) Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits)
that are expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after the end of the reporting
period in which the employees render the related service. Short term employee benefits
are recognised in the year when the employees render the related service.

(i) Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans are recognised as an expense in
the income and expenditure account when the services are rendered by the employees.

(iii)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.

() Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in the income and expenditure account except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in funds, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in funds,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment
to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits. Apart from differences which arise on initial
recognition of assets and liabilities, all deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
asset can be utilised, are recognised.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

U] Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

(m) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is probable will
result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(n)  Income recognition

Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Provided
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the income and
expenditure, if applicable, can be measured reliably, income is recognised in the income
and expenditure account as follows:

(i) Government subventions

Government subventions for recurrent activities are recognised as income in the income
and expenditure account when there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching with them and that the subventions will be received.
Government subventions that compensate the Group for expenditure incurred are
recognised as income in the income and expenditure account on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenditure are incurred. Unspent subventions for recurrent
activities arising in the financial year will be retained by the Council as reserves up to a limit
as agreed with the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region ("the
Government"). Amount in excess of the limit will be returned to the Government in the
following financial year.

(i) Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

EENRB HKPC
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)  Income recognition (continued)

(iii)  Contract revenue
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from service contracts is recognised when control of services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the amount of
consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the services to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

Service income is generally recognised over time, using an input method to measure
the progress towards complete satisfaction of the service, because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group or the Group's
performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date. The input
method recognises revenue based on the proportion of the actual costs incurred relative
to the estimated total costs for satisfaction of the services. Where the criteria for over-time
recognition are not met, service income is recognised at a point in time when control of
the service is transferred to the customer.

(o) Contract assets

A contact asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred
to the customer. If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is
recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

(p)  Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received a consideration (or an amount of consideration that is due) from
the customer. If a customer pays the consideration before the Group transfers goods or
services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property, plant and equipment,
or intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised as an
asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(i) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract that the Group
can specifically identify.

(i) The costs generate or enhance resources of the Group that will be used in satisfying
performance obligations in the future.

(iii) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the income and expenditure
account on a systematic basis that is consistent with the pattern of the revenue to which
the asset related is recognised. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.

() Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the month are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the average rate for that month. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchanges rates ruling at the reporting
date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the income and expenditure account.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the closing foreign exchange rate at the reporting date. The resulting exchange differences
are recongised in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in the
exchange reserve.

On disposal of an enterprise outside Hong Kong, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences recognised in reserve which relate to that enterprise is reclassified from reserve
to the income and expenditure account when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

(s)  Capital subvention fund

The capital subvention fund accumulated from the prior years to compensate the Group
for the costs of the subvented assets is recognised in the income and expenditure account
over the useful lives of the subvented assets.

EENRB HKPC
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4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(t)  Related parties

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Group if that
person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(if) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of key management personnel of the Group.
(b)  Anentity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions apply:

0] The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which means
that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate
or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

(viiiy ~ The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
(ii) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and
(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.
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#.Z 2020 F 3 A 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2020

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

reporting period, are described below.

Estimate of revenue and costs of works

Depending on the terms of individual contract of services, the Group recognises its
service income over time if the Group has met the criteria in paragraph 35 of HKFRS 15
or at a point in time when the control of the assets is transferred to the customer. For
service income recognised over time, the Group reviews and revises the estimates of
contract revenue and contract costs prepared for each contract as the contract progresses.
Budgeted service income is determined in accordance with the terms set out in the
relevant contracts. Budgeted service costs which mainly comprise staff costs and costs of
materials are prepared by experienced management. In order to keep the budget accurate
and up-to-date, management conducts periodic reviews on the management budgets by
comparing the budgeted amounts to the actual amounts incurred.

Measurement of expected credit loss allowance

The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for financial assets at amortised
cost is an area that requires significant assumptions about future economic conditions and
credit behaviour.

Significant judgments are also required in applying the accounting requirements for
measuring expected credit loss, such as:

- Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk; and

- Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the measurement of expected
credit losses.

Where the actual result is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of the financial assets at amortised cost and credit loss expenses in the
period in which such estimate is changed.
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6. W% - MEME

2020 £3 A31H

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 March 2020

]|
The Group
AEEF FREAREHE
EENKE HETRE Furniture
HKPC Leasehold and HWEE
Building improvements equipment Total
BT T BT BT BT
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
RE: Cost
20194481 H At 1 April 2019 267,784 87,329 238,828 593,941
NE Additions 70 20,502 16,327 36,899
HE Disposals - (2,462) (11,477) (13,939)
B Exchange adjustments = (54) (114) (168)
R2020F3 831 H At 31 March 2020 267,854 105,315 243,564 616,733
SEHRE - Accumulated depreciation
2019FE4818 At 1 April 2019 153,775 39,494 180,603 373,872
FETE Charge for the year 5,345 21,002 21,904 48,251
HE#(o] Written back on disposals - (2,195) (11,432) (13,627)
HERE Exchange adjustments - (54) (52) (106)
R20200F3 831 H At 31 March 2020 159,120 58,247 191,023 408,390
RmEEE: Net book value
R2020FE 3831 H At 31 March 2020 108,734 47,068 52,541 208,343
2019 3H31H 31 March 2019
£5
The Group
HEETF RIERER
S ENKRE HEIR Furniture
HKPC Leasehold and R
Building improvements equipment Total
BT AT AT AT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RiE: Cost
2018481 H At 1 April 2018 267,784 85,973 228,182 581,939
NE Additions - 24,887 18,548 43,435
HE Disposals - (23,473) (7,810) (31,283)
e Exchange adjustments - (58) (92) (150)
R2019F 3831 H At 31 March 2019 267,784 87,329 238,828 593,941
FEHAE : Accumulated depreciation
R201844H1H At 1 April 2018 148,431 46,389 165,720 360,540
FETE Charge for the year 5,344 15,928 22627 43,899
HE#(0] Written back on disposals - (22,765) (7,693) (30,458)
HhERE Exchange adjustments - (58) (51) (109)
R20194%3 A 31 H At 31 March 2019 153,775 39,494 180,603 373,872
BRERE - Net book value
R2019FE3H31 H At 31 March 2019 114,009 47,835 58,225 220,069
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6. ¥ - FWEMERE (&) 6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
2020 £3 A31H 31 March 2020
£ENB
The Council
HEEF {FE R E
S EHAKIE WETRE Furniture
HKPC Leasehold and $EE
Building improvements equipment Total
BET T BETT BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RE: Cost
B2019F 4818 At 1 April 2019 267,784 86,479 237,018 591,281
B Additions 70 20,502 16,245 36,817
HeE Disposals - (2,462) (11,408) (13,870)
R2020F 3 B 31 H At 31 March 2020 267,854 104,519 241,855 614,228
REHIRE Accumulated depreciation
R2019F481H At 1 April 2019 153,775 38,645 179,762 372,182
FEITE Charge for the year 5,345 21,002 21,647 47,994
H 5[] Written back on disposals - (2,195) (11,376) (13,571)
R2020FE 3831 H At 31 March 2020 159,120 57,452 190,033 406,605
ERERE Net book value
P 20203 A 31 H At 31 March 2020 108,734 47,067 51,822 207,623
2019 3H31H 31 March 2019
ENB
The Council
HEETF RELEE
EEDRIE mETR Furniture
HKPC Leasehold and RG]
Building improvements equipment Total
BT T BIETIT BIETIT BIEETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE: Cost
R2018F 481 H At 1 April 2018 267,784 85,066 226,741 579,591
NE Additions - 24,887 17,892 42,779
HE Disposals - (23,474) (7,615) (31,089)
201943 31 H At 31 March 2019 267,784 86,479 237,018 591,281
BEHIRE - Accumulated depreciation
R2018FE481H At 1 April 2018 148431 45482 164,902 358,815
FEFE Charge for the year 5,344 15,928 22,400 43,672
HERMD Written back on disposals - (22,765) (7,540) (30,305)
M20194F3A31H At 31 March 2019 153,775 38,645 179,762 372,182
RERE : Net book value
FR2019F3 831 H At 31 March 2019 114,009 47834 57,256 219,099

29

EENRB HKPC



I I% SRR S B2 B4 53R E5 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2019-20

Evp et EShEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

#HZE 2020 £ 3 A 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2020

7. EREE

2020 £3 A31H

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

31 March 2020

The Group The Council
BETT BT T
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FE: Cost
R2019%F 481 H At 1 April 2019 43,647 43,502
NE Additions 5,806 5,803
HE Disposals (1,080) (1,055)
BREFE Exchange adjustments (9) -
R2020F 3 831 H At 31 March 2020 48,364 48,250
FEHss - Accumulated amortisation
R2019F481H At 1 April 2019 37,201 37,118
FRE Y Amortisation for the year 4,356 4,340
HERE (] Written back on disposals (1,080) (1,055)
BERE Exchange adjustments (@) -
2020 3H31H At 31 March 2020 40,473 40,403
IRERE : Net book value
202083 831 H At 31 March 2020 7,891 7,847
31 March 2019
2019 3H31H
The Group The Council
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE: Cost
2018481 H At 1 April 2018 42,440 42,332
NE Additions 2412 2,368
HE Disposals (1,198) (1,198)
BERE Exchange adjustments 7) -
201943 A 31 H At 31 March 2019 43,647 43,502
FEHE - Accumulated amortisation
R2018FE481H At 1 April 2018 33,916 33,851
R Amortisation for the year 4,487 4,465
HERE (] Written back on disposals (1,198) (1,198)
BT Exchange adjustments (4) -
201943 A 31 H At 31 March 2019 37,201 37,118
IRMEFRE - Net book value
201943 H31H At 31 March 2019 6,446 6,384

EENRB HKPC
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8. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

$ENB

The Council
2020 2019
BT AETIT
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FELTHREMD  IREAERTE Unlisted shares, at cost 20,010 20,010
B OREEE Less: Impairment loss (1,288) (1,288)
M3A31H At 31 March 18,722 18,722

EENRNBATDBERREIRWFHBEEHBREN
T LUKEE ©

9. MEANEER

Particulars of the Council's subsidiaries as at the reporting date are disclosed in note 1.

9. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

SE
The Group
2020 2019
BT AEBFIT
HKS$'000 HK$'000
i EE Share of net assets = 1,559
BiE aE e A &
Assets Liabilities Equity Revenue Profit
BT AT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2019 £ 2019
100% 100 per cent 3,946 (49) 3,897 - 15
EEEERELS Group's effective interest 1,579 20) 1,559 - 6
@ HEAREZERUETME BFFEAT - (@  Particulars of the associate up to the date of deregistration are as follows:
HtEAE
EEMmII R BERITR HEmN
ZiEhE, HEEX FREHELLE
Place of Particulars of Proportion
incorporation issuedand  of ownership FEET
and paid up interest held Principal
2B Name operations capital by a subsidiary activity
BEERBEED Chongging - Hong Kong Productivity FE AR 3,000,000 40% TS
REFOERAT # Promotion Center Company Limited# PRC 7T RMB3,000,000 Inactive

# RREBILERRETMEBNHLEREDIE #
PR EABN S AT TS ©

Not audited by BDO Limited or another member firm of the BDO global network.

ZHENRNAYBEERUEEM - AREEHEAR
HIERFTSSRWIFER » BRERZSHE -

The associate was deregistered during the year. No share of profit or loss of the associate
has been recognised as the amount involved is insignificant.
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10. FEURERRX - FRTMIARIEE

10. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS

®H $ENB
The Group The Council

2020 2019 2020 2019

BT ETIT BT T BT IT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000

FEWBRR Accounts receivable 25,922 44,657 25,893 44,441
IENENE] Prepayments 27,791 20,605 27,401 20,442
BRIBA Contract costs 57,698 43,406 57,698 43,406
RS MEMERERIE Deposits and other receivables 21,527 9,776 20,961 9,654
132,938 118,444 131,953 117,943
e Impairment (215) (57) (215) (57)
MED Current 132,723 118,387 131,738 117,886

(@) FEUBRFRLIE
FEMRA RV EE BRI B ERT

(@  Impairment of accounts receivable

The movements in the allowance for impairment of accounts receivable are as follows:

KEREENR

The Group and the Council
2020 2019
BT AIFIT
HK$'000 HK$’000
m4B1H At 1 April 57 _
EEE K Impairment losses 158 57
W3A31H At 31 March 215 57

BEDTRFEEN S WS D MERRREEEERNE
EBRMET - BREDREBEUBEEN AR
FHR e RgERE (W - BFERMTR) - &5
SRS R - SESEELIRNHRE B AT
SHEEBESMN - BRI RGBTz 51
ASER - —ME - BURSIAaiBEe—F1ER
BIERFER T LM -

EENRB HKPC

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using an allowance matrix
to measure expected credit losses. The allowance rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e, by customer type
and rating). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value
of money and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for more than one year and are not
subject to enforcement activity.
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(a) FEUBRFURI{E (A1)

IR Ao L PR S R B AR AR S R
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10. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS
(continued)
(@)  Impairment of accounts receivable (continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Group's trade
receivables using an allowance matrix:

At 31 March 2020

jEiH
Past due
DR —Z =R
188 ={@AR HME
ENHA Less than 1to3 Over et
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
AR EREX Expected credit loss rate 0.168% 0.720% 0.460% 2.366% 0.829%
BREAAE (BT IT) Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 13,704 1,789 3,560 6,869 25,922
TEH=EEE (BT IT) Expected credit losses (HK$'000) 23 13 16 163 215
22019 3H31H At 31 March 2019
EVER
Past due
AN —=F =fEA
1A =f@ER HE
BNER Less than 1t03 Over FEHS
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
TG ERIBEX Expected credit loss rate 0.042% 0.088% 0.121% 0.278% 0.128%
BREAAE (BBTIT) Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 19,178 7,181 5223 13,075 44,657
AR =EEE (BBETIT) Expected credit losses (HK$'000) 8 6 6 37 57

(b) IEFIERIFEUERTR

FESERFN B ZHHEHEIH - BREEMNEEBRN
E—TFEIBERIAHEE 296) ©

FFME B S EE BE b 4 S8 /% B IRVE I FE M AR SR AV BR ER D 4740
T

(b)  Accounts receivable that are not impaired

Accounts receivable is due at the date of billing. Further details on the Group's credit policy
are set out in note 29(a).

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable that are neither individually nor collectively

considered to be impaired is as follows:

®E $ENB

The Group The Council
2020 2019 2020 2019
BT BT IT BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BHEAD R —1E B Less than 1 month past due 15,493 26,359 15,493 26,144
BH—E==EA 1to 3 months past due 3,560 5,223 3,560 5223
BH=EALILE More than 3 months past due 6,869 13,075 6,840 13,074
25,922 44,657 25,893 44,441

EENRB HKPC

33



I I% SRR S B2 B4 53R E5 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2019-20

Evp et EShEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

#HZE 2020 £ 3 A 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2020

10. FEUERRK - RTRIARIEE (&)

(0 ZEBEEDREENENRY BRERZAHIR
RREEERBCRARBER B2 R EE
HEH NN AR A SR B IR -

11. 8HEE

10. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS

(continued)

(c)  The capitalised contract costs are charged to the consolidated income and
expenditure account on a systematic basis that is consistent with the pattern of
the revenue to which the asset related is recognised, when the Group satisfies
performance obligations of respective service contracts.

11. CONTRACT ASSETS

KEREENR
The Group and the Council

2020 2019
BETT BT IT
HK$'000 HK$'000

ERIEEELR Contract assets arising from
RERI AR S Consultancy 62,237 39,451
=3 Training 25 7
RS IERIS Manufacturing support 1,098 942
BENERE Exhibitions and study mission - 117
BRIEERAR Total contract assets 63,360 40,517

BREEZWAID IRMEERRE - 153l - BIERE
RIRES > HETMRES KRES LEREFTHRILZU
AFER - R EBIhTE BRI RIS Rttt - TR5T
BENEBR  ERRENEEZRAZSRIENSD
BREWERR -

20204 3 A 31 B - 6NEEZTEHRKESERRE
mr

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from the consultancy, training,
manufacturing support, publications and advertising, and exhibitions and study mission
services as the receipt of consideration is conditional on successful completion of
performance obligations. Upon completion of performance obligation, the amounts
recognised as contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables.

The expected timing of recovery of the contract assets at the reporting date is as follows:

EEREENR

The Group and the Council
2020 2019
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
—FER Within one year 45,391 19,915
BTEBERE 2-5 year 17,969 20,602
BREELRRE Total contract assets 63,360 40,517

34
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12. CASH, BANK BALANCES AND FIXED DEPOSITS

KE SENB
The Group The Council
2020 2019 2020 2019
BT BT T BT BT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
= AR BB EHER Fixed deposits with original maturities
over 3 months when placed 146,187 138,301 139,975 131,776
RITEHMEE Cash at banks and on hand 460,963 269,812 449,081 255,764
AR R ANIRE ~ SR1TEF S Cash, bank balances and fixed deposits in
B AERE the statement of financial position 607,150 408,113 589,056 387,540
RRRE Restricted cash (388,533) (171,563) (388,533) (171,563)
—{E BRI EHER Fixed deposits with original maturities
over 3 months when placed (146,187) (138,301) (139,975) (131,776)
FeRenBRANEESR Cash and cash equivalents in the
NEE EY consolidated statement of cash flows 72,430 98,249 60,548 84,201

M2020F 3 A31 B £ENRMEEMNRITERF
A9 388,533,000 7¢ (2019 £E : 171,563,000 JC ) FIRIER
RIEBRITIRF BERANEBEENE S EIEENE
B - HBTASIE B HZEA LR REAKIEERER
SRATER P EA MR S —BEREBUT -

20204 3 A 31 B EENRTERBEERERE
B N ERATHISRIE A 15,828,000 7T (2019 4F 18,474,000
BIL)  ZEGRNERFEZ PR BUTEBE N INEZ
HIARBIFEAREE -

Cash at banks of the Council and the Group as at 31 March 2020 included HK$388,533,000
(2019: HK$171,563,000) which was placed in separate project bank accounts and restricted
for the purpose of projects governed by respective Government funding schemes. Any
unspent funding, together with the interest income generated in project bank accounts, is
returned to the Government upon completion of the project or termination of the project
agreement.

Cash at banks of the Group as at 31 March 2020 included HK$15,828,000 (2019:
HK$18,474,000) which was placed with banks in the PRC, the remittance of which is subject
to relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC

government.

EENRB HKPC
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13. EfTERREER 13. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS
£ £ENB
The Group The Council
2020 2019 2020 2019
BT T EETIT BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETBRTR Trade payables 26,845 54,982 26,820 54,153
FRmERE (W) Provision for annual leave compensation
(note) 6,844 6414 6,844 6,414
FERTE B R EAME TR Accruals and other payables 65,604 47,462 64,826 44,674
99,293 108,858 98,490 105,241
FTEEN BRI AETE RSN —ERNEE - All of the accounts payable and accruals are expected to be settled within one year.
BfiEE - Rt E e Note: Provision for annual leave compensation
£ENB
The Council
2020 2019
BT EETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
n4R1H At 1 April 6,414 7,459
B E (o) Reversal of provision made (758) (629)
g Provision made 1,188 -
EBENEE Provision utilised = (416)
MW3A31H At 31 March 6,844 6414

REEE (REKRE) F0E - REW—FNRETNZ
BELDERER (BREEHBRAREBHY) - BZER
FREABEE-ABFANEERT - NEMESE
B YAUEZEFREES  AUWIRERIVERERY
FEFWBENRESTIR - FREERBRHESER
HHRBARERERAVERERMETE ©

EENRB HKPC

Under Chapter 4 of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, staff members who have
completed a full year of services are entitled to take at least seven days of leave (including
Sundays and Public Holidays) consecutively within one calendar year. Any staff member
who leaves his or her employment is entitled to annual leave compensation. She/He is
entitled to receive in cash the annual leave pay earned but not utilised. Provision is made
for the employees' untaken annual leave balances at the reporting date.
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14. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

£E SENR
The Group The Council
2020 2019 2020 2019
BT BIETIT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Z A BB Short-term advances received from
customers
BRI R Consultancy 433,456 243,088 433,295 243,073
53 Training 1,120 1,722 1,120 1,722
SUEETERB Manufacturing support 3,667 2,548 3,667 2,548
BREEASE Total contract liabilities 438,243 247,358 438,082 247,343

15. EBABEQTMAREL / FHEAR

IR

ENEEARSIR LB / S HTB AR FRIA R T

NEE » AHREREE -

16. EREEE

SUBSIDIARIES

interest bearing and repayable on demand.

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

15. AMOUNT DUE TO ASSOCIATE AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO

Amount due to associate and amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-

@ &= (@)  The Group
HEUNEE HEmE
Office Leased b
equipment properties Total
BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
201943831 H At 31 March 2019 - - -
EXRER (EBTIEIMEMAI)  Initial adoption of HKFRS 16 (note 2(a))
%16 5% (MIEE 2) 2,118 244 2,362
20194 4 A1 BIER (EHEF At 1 April 2019 on adoption of HKFRS 16
HREYER) 28 16 5% 2,118 244 2,362
FEIE Depreciation for the year (424) 67) (491)
7202063831 H At 31 March 2020 1,694 177 1,871

EENRB HKPC



I I% SRR S B2 B4 53R E5 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2019-20

Evp et EShEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

#HZE 2020 £ 3 A 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2020

16. EREEE (&) 16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)
b)) %ENB (b)  The Council
MAERE
Office equipment
BT
HK$'000
20193831 H At 31 March 2019 -
BRER (BRMEHREER) Initial adoption of HKFRS 16 (note 2(a))
% 16 5% (P 2()) 2,118
201944 1 BEA At 1 April 2019 on adoption of HKFRS 16
(CEBIMHEREEA) 5 16 58 2,118
FEINE Depreciation for the year (424)
720203 B 31 H At 31 March 2020 1,694
17. HEGHE 17. LEASE LIABILITIES
®H $ENB
The Group The Council
2020 2019 2020 2019
BT BT IT BT T BT
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
w4A1H At beginning of the year - - - _
BORER (FEMEREAERI)  Initial adoption of HKFRS 16 (note 2(a))

#1698 (FEE 2)) 2,362 - 2,118 -
FEZH (MEE25) Interest expense (note 25) 91 - 83 -
BN Payment (534) - (467) -
MN3A31H At end of the year 1,919 - 1,734 -
BRI RRAVEER ¢ Reconciliation to the statement of financial

position:
mEBaE Current liabilities 483 - 402 _
itk Non-current liabilities 1,436 - 1,332 -
MR3B31H At end of the year 1,919 - 1,734 -
38

EENRB HKPC



I % BATERES B2 B4 F5¥RE5 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2019-20

Evp et e hEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

#.Z 2020 F 3 A 31 HIEEE Year ended 31 March 2020

18. #E= 18. TOTAL FUNDS
®H $ENB
The Group The Council
2020 2019 2020 2019
BT ETIT BT T BT IT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BERED (KiEE @) Capital subvention fund (note (a)) 112,196 120,571 112,196 120,571
IWAEBhEE (FIEE (b)) Revenue reserve (note (b)) 367,068 313,392 358,866 306,997
479,264 433,963 471,062 427,568
HEERE (I ©) Exchange reserve (note (c)) 800 1,773
480,064 435,736
FEFERE G ERAE RS (FEE (d) Non-controlling interests (note (d)) 1,699 2,035
481,763 437,771
@ EAXEH2 (@) Capital subvention fund
KEMEEAR
The Group and the Council
2020 2019
BT AEETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R4aB1H At beginning of year 120,571 132,718
AW RS Transfer to income and expenditure account (8,375) (12,147)
W38 31H Atend of year 112,196 120,571
(b)  WAEER (b)  Revenue reserve
£ £ENB
The Group The Council
2020 2019 2020 2019
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
H4B1H At beginning of year 313,392 229,094 306,997 224313
HEIKERE Transfer from income and expenditure
account 53,676 84,298 51,869 82,684
Mm3A31H At end of year 367,068 313,392 358,866 306,997

WA RS T CEREBNREENRNRELE / (B

18) MmRZ

accumulated surplus or deficit.

This reserve was created for the purpose of recording the Group's and the Council's

EENRB HKPC
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18. WE= (&) 18. TOTAL FUNDS (continued)
 BERRE () Exchange reserve
®E
The Group
2020 2019
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
n481H At beginning of year 1,773 2471
MERREBEHRERNELER Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of
operations in the PRC (973) (698)
W3 A31H Atend of year 800 1,773

BERBEEAEEBRINEBYBREAMELNTE
PERETE o

(d) FFIEARRRERIEL

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of operations outside Hong Kong.

(d)  Non-controlling interests

£

The Group
2020 2019
BETT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
w4H1H Atbeginning of year 2,035 1,679
(IR E Share of exchange reserve (122) (109
FEBLFE Share of surplus for the year (214) 465
MN3H31H At end of year 1,699 2,035

19. FERFESEED

BRI B A ZE D RTE 2009 £E 6 B 22 B5ETH (1TIK
ZHETHY (TESH, ) HBeF - £ENRIYU
BREEBRREEENPHEMENSEREBERFE
o AT ZHEFEKEREEREENR
NEBYBREERMENEERTEEENEMN 15%
2019/2020 FEMBFE BERESHEMTRER
FROERPIFTRE 1S YA SR E S B BhEE A 21,100,000
JT (2018/2019 £E £ @ 24,300,000 7T ) * R IBRF A
FEREER) - 20192020 FENBITEEEEER
2162 27T (2018/2019 & : 2151 BT ) « £ENF
ERESHEEEANFEEMMNTEESSEAMESN
BFREED -

2019/2020 FEAENRNBUTEN 2 ENKEZREDN
BT BT (2018/2019 FEE t RALE) -

40
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19. GOVERNMENT SUBVENTION FOR RECURRENT ACTIVITIES

Annual block grant

In accordance with section 8 of the Memorandum of Administrative Arrangement ("MAA")
dated 22 June 2009 signed between the Government and the Council, the Council is
allowed to keep any savings from its annual block grant as reserves. At any one point
in time the level of accumulated savings from the Council's annual block grant shall
not exceed 15% of its annual block grant in the current financial year. The government
subvention for the year of 2019/20 includes the grant from Innovation and Technology
Fund for Automotive Parts and Accessory Systems R&D Centre of HK$21.1 million (2018/19:
HK$24.3 million) which is not classified as annual block grant. The total block grant of the
Council for the year of 2019/20 was HK$216.2 million (2018/19: HK$215.1 million). The
annual block grant from the Government in the current and prior years has been fully
expended by the Council in accordance with the MAA.

The annual block grant of the Council for the year of 2019/20 was entirely accounted for as
Government subvention income in the income and expenditure account (2018/19: same).
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20. ARFEURA 20. SERVICE INCOME
®H $ENB
The Group The Council
2020 2019 2020 2019
FoaE BT ETIT BT T BT IT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
KEZEFEALZWA Revenue from contracts with
customers
RERI AR S Consultancy 374,286 393,226 369,922 384,130
523l Training 11,578 7,737 11,578 7,737
BUEETIERIS Manufacturing support 21,583 23,772 21,583 23,772
HETMRES Publications and advertising = 1 = 1
BEgNERE Exhibitions and study mission 5,094 5,846 5,094 5,846
REBF AL Z BN Total revenue from contracts with (a)
customers 412,541 430,582 408,177 421,486
K EEMARFILA Revenue from other sources
RFEIEE Government funded projects 56,547 37,703 56,547 37,703
BEEESEEIER Hong Kong Jockey Club funded (b)
project 1,271 - 1,271 -
470,359 468,285 465,995 459,189
(@) HESRUWAAIEERE (@)  Timing of revenue recognition
£E8 $ENB
The Group The Council
2020 2019 2020 2019
BRI BT IT BRI BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
NE—RERIE, At a point in time 135,130 143,159 135,130 143,159
PERFTEHETS Over time 277,411 287,423 273,047 278,327
REBEGH BB Total revenue from contracts with
customers 412,541 430,582 408,177 421,486

EENRB HKPC
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20. BRFFURA (D) 20. SERVICE INCOME (continued)

(b) HBE20204F3 A 31 HILFE  £ENREWE (b)  Allocation from The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust is for operating an
EHBEYREEAES 1,091,979 BT, ARX information technology consultancy service and capacity building programme for
FFIFBUN A BIR S BT RB M e D &2k NGOs and HK$ 1,091,979 have been received during the year ended 31 March 2020.
B

(0 THRETHNAREFHERZMADEE » HNR () Revenue recognised in the current reporting period that was included in contract
EHUIEAERNEER liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

2020 2020

KE YENR

The Group The Council
BETT BB
HK$'000 HK$'000

R AR5 Consultancy 88,609 88,609

b= Training 2,462 2,462

BB ETIERE Manufacturing support 1,092 1,092

BEaNERE Exhibitions and study mission 230 230

92,393 92,393

2019 2019

KE EENR

The Group The Council
BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000

EBRS AR TS Consultancy 66,001 66,001

=3l Training 515 515

BB ETIRARE Manufacturing support 537 537

e N ERE Exhibitions and study mission 15 15
67,068 67,068

d FEXEE (d)  Performance obligations

WABEREE—EFEEY  BRERBEREENE For service income recognised at a point in time, the performance obligation is satisfied

£ - WATERBERSEHET - BEEREBELIREREE upon delivery of services. For service income recognised over time, the performance

MEBKEL - —RETRERBIEREFPZNEH obligation is satisfied over time as services are rendered. Short-term advances are normally

SEINE required before rendering the services.

EENRB HKPC
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21. HftlgA 21. OTHERINCOME
®H $ENB
The Group The Council
2020 2019 2020 2019
BT T ETIT BT BETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEWA Rental income 6,570 6,283 5,917 6,283
FEWA Interest income 3,154 2,146 3,030 2,023
s —EBE AR W Gain on deregistration of associate 13 - - -
WA Sundry income 4,144 5477 3,688 5,229
13,881 13,906 12,635 13,535
22. EEHE 22. STAFF EMOLUMENTS
®H $ENB
The Group The Council
2020 2019 2020 2019
BT T BT IT BT BT IT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e MY BhE I Salaries and variable pay 315,341 301,154 306,156 293,168
K <& Gratuities 2,280 2,023 2,280 2,023
HBEFIE ~ ERNKEAMMER Overtime, subsistence and other
allowances 13,294 13,563 13,294 13,563
B E#HEEM Staff education allowances 158 434 159 434
BEEZBRA — BEMHKETE Pension costs-defined contribution plans 31,085 23,498 31,085 23,498
B EEAlsrEl Medical benefits scheme 9,262 7,858 9,262 7,858
371,420 348,530 362,236 340,544

g Eattsh - &2 H 19,472,000 7T (2019 4E © 8,492,000
Jt) EFtAEEREENREEEESH -

In addition to the above, staff costs amounting to HK$19,472,000 (2019: HK$8,492,000)
have been charged to project related expenses of the Group and the Council.

EENRB HKPC
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23. SREEBASHH 23. SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION
DAREE A B EmEE LA E N BREREFTUEN The aggregate remuneration (salaries, allowances, benefits-in-kind and provident fund
FE (32~ 2M - BYEANAEDHE contributions) received by the senior management for their services rendered to the Group
R REZRINT - and the Council are listed as follows:
SEREENR
The Group and the Council
2020 2019
BETT EETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Mohamed Din Butt, 283k Mohamed Din Butt, Executive Director 4,356 3,966
RFEE - RIS (REEE) Lawrence Cheung, Director, Technology Development 3,250 3,059
EOIR 0 BB (h¥EER) Gordon Lo, Director, Business Management
(F2 20194 1 B 31 BEK) (retired on 31 January 2019) 113 3,041
R, BBAEEL Edmond Lai, Director, Digital
(Fr 201847 B 3 BfEdp) (appointed on 3 July 2018) 3,106 2,151
MBS - BlAEE (MIEEE) Tony Lam, Director, Corporate Services
(FR2017 5 4 B 21 BEER) (resigned on 21 April 2017) = 6
BEHEE  EH Agnes Mak, Executive Director
(K2 2017 £ 10 B 31 HERIK) (retired on 31 October 2017) - 347
10,825 12,570
24. EENRESEZAENEHM 24. REMUNERATION OF MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL
RER - AEHBTENAEMESERENEFNEME During the year, the Chairman and other members of the Council did not receive any
ENRRENREBEEUEMEHIM (2019F 1 F) o remuneration for their services rendered to the Council (2019: Nil).
25. HfttziH 25. OTHER EXPENSES
£ EENR
The Group The Council
2020 2019 2020 2019
BT T BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—RE AT H General and administrative expenses 43,524 41,894 41,210 38,493
HERBZH Project related expenses 190,720 190,509 199,222 195,879
HEMZE - BMEMRIEEE Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 273 793 260 754
e Depreciation
-2~ BRI - property, plant and equipment 48,251 43,899 47,994 43,672
- [FREEE — right-of-use assets 491 - 424 -
B E Amortisation of intangible assets 4,356 4,487 4,340 4,465
HEaBEZHE Interest expense on lease liabilities 91 - 83 -
BB Auditor's remuneration 916 919 481 441
MIESR Sundry expenses 16,326 17,723 16,248 17,363
304,948 300,224 310,262 301,067

EENRB HKPC
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26. Fhig#t 26. INCOME TAX
@ HFEWZREMTBFAERE: (@) Income tax in the consolidated income and expenditure account
represents:
-5
The Group
2020 2019
BETT AT
HK$'000 HK$’000
RE - EELISMEERIE Current tax — outside Hong Kong Provision for the year 147 251
HERNAEENBERBERESE (RBEA) & 87 & The Council is not subject to Hong Kong profits tax as the Council has been granted
RPN A D ERIE » FIL BN ER SR o exemption from all Hong Kong taxes by the Inland Revenue Department under Section 87
of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.
HREEHBRNEENBATNREZE 2020044£3 B 31 B No provision for Hong Kong profits tax for the Council's Hong Kong subsidiaries has been
120194 3 B 31 BIEWEE AMERB R - fa made as they did not have assessable profit during the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019:
TEHBEBREBER - Nil).
SENDBEHPRNEB AT R EZ 25% (2019 4 : Taxation for the Council's Mainland subsidiaries is charged at 25% (2019: 20%).
20%) ©
by MEZTHBEESAREELLERAMRREHAY (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting surplus at
BE : applicable tax rates:
%E
The Group
2020 2019
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BRELHIE ER Surplus before taxation 45,234 72,867
R s EEEERE Notional tax on surplus before taxation, calculated at rates
SHERFE RSN RERIE applicable in the jurisdictions concerned 7,328 11,852
HERRIA R IE S £ Tax effect of non-taxable income (118,159) (117,2871)
RAliEH = HFi IE S £ Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 110,978 105,654
KIERBNAN BRIEEEINFIEFZ  Taxeffect of unused tax losses not recognised = 28
EANELUEFEERIEEEMNRBIESTE  Taxeffect of prior years'  tax losses utilised = )
BEREBIES Y Income tax expense 147 251

45
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26. FRiS#M (&)

26. INCOME TAX (continued)

(0 AN RRELSTIEEE) : (0 Movement in tax payable in the consolidated statement of financial
position:
£
The Group
2020 2019
BT BT IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
®4H1H At 1 April 6 307
FERIE Provision for the year 147 251
EATHI R RIS PRC corporate income tax paid (33) (552)
R3H31H At 31 March 120 6
REF BT Representing:
e
The Group
2020 2019
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
AR[EHIE Tax refundable (2)
FENHIE Tax payable 122
M3A31H At 31 March 120 6

(d) SEHEMIAEERRMSE:

TERERR  EEBEHIERBIEAR 12300007t (20194
554,000 7t ) AJMFIEIIZSHEEENNBARNR
REZHFE - SHERA  HRKREEEREERH
RIRIERF A AT R RIS ES18 » FTLUREH R FIR
BIERARLHIEEE - A AERINHRIESE (2PEH
FAR BN AERINFRIEEERIN) AT AE
B2 S HE BB B ARRRRERBFIE - HE
FATEBANA AR IEEE % 738,000 47T (2019
F:F) , BEAFEEE -

EEMN2020F 3 831 HM 201943 A 31 HIEEF
BRNENELHIEEE -

46
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(d)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had tax losses of approximately HK$1,230,000
(2019: HK$554,000) that are available for offsetting against future taxable profits of which
subsidiaries in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these tax losses as, in the opinion of the management, it is uncertain whether
sufficient future taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
Unused tax losses (except those related to a subsidiary in China) can be carried forward
without time limit. The subsidiary in China has unused tax losses of HK$738,000 (2019: Nil)

which will expire in five years.

The Group has no material deferred tax liabilities requiring recognition as at 31 March 2020
and 2019.



I % BATERES B2 B4 F5¥RE5 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2019-20

27. ik

(@) FRISEMEEAMEA

7201945 3 A 31 B SERENIBEERKEHEER
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27. COMMITMENTS

(@)  Aslessee of operating leases

At 31 March 2019, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases as follows:

%0

The Group
2019
BB
HK$'000

T RESEY)
BI1ER
E2EESFA

Within 1 year

Land and buildings

After 1 year but within 5 years

535
2,052

2,587

BLHE-RISRI—E0TF  SEEREREN
ESFAEGRFETUENRE - FIREEHREa3EHE

R2019F 471 0 EECRELHERBHEHES
o

(b) TEREHR  HRRIFEMBREAER
BN -

The leases typically run for an initial period of one to five years, with an option to renew the
leases when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

From 1 April 2019, the Group has recognised right-of-use assets for these leases.

(b)  Capital commitments outstanding at the reporting date not provided
for in the consolidated financial statements were as follows:

KEREENR
The Group and the Council
2020 2019
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
B4 Contracted for 4,339 7,846

EENRB HKPC
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28. BARRIBINMEMIR
BEREHRA  SERSHTEMNKRESENT |

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each category of financial instruments as at the reporting date are
as follows:

EREE Financial assets
55 £ENB
The Group The Council
2020 2019 2020 2019
BT AEETIT BT EETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
LUSERRE AT EN B E Financial assets at amortised cost
BEERYBERR AR Financial assets included in accounts
FzeremEE (MF10) receivable, repayments and deposits
(note 10) 104,932 97,782 104,337 97,444
Re ~ WITEARERER Cash, bank balances, and fixed deposits
(BE 12) (note 12) 607,150 408,113 589,056 387,540
Amounts due from subsidiaries - - 1,169 1,136
712,082 505,895 694,562 486,120
_ Financial liabilities
ez =R
®E $ENB
The Group The Council
2020 2019 2020 2019
BET T BT IT BETIT BT IT
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
LUgEs At ENERMEE Financial liabilities at amortised cost
BIEEEMNESNETERNS  Finandal liabilities included in accounts
RasE (fhE13) payable and accruals (note 13) 92,449 102,444 91,646 98,827
HEaE Lease liabilities 1,919 - 1,734 -
FENBE/ATIFIE Amount due to associate = 1,089 = -
ENMEARFKIE Amounts due to subsidiaries - - 11,841 11,132
94,368 103,533 105,221 109,959
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SEEEREEBRISELFE  RBESR  FIEXK
IMNEE R o BRI ERBERNYBERBERRRA
ILIEIE - BESIT

(a) (EEEE

SENEERBREZRBBYIRT - EREDHERE
BoR > WERERZREERREE -

F 202043 B 31 B 20194 3 A 31 HNES AR X
LR

TEREFFIR 2020 F 3 B 31 R 2019 F 3 A 31 BER
AEBNEEBRNEEEZ AanEERKE (FE2E
PEEER ( BRIFEEMERATERENEADERARN
RENNERTER) ) REEBEERDT
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest-rate and currency risks arises in the normal course
of the Group's business. The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below:

(@)  Creditrisk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to bank balances, fixed deposits and
accounts receivable. Management has a credit policy in place and exposure to credit risks
are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 March 2020 and 2019

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based
on the Group's credit policy, which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as
at 31 March 2020 and 2019.

As at 31 March 2020

+=ER
FREAEHEE
12-month ZHIFRER(EEEIE
expected credit loss Lifetime expected credit losses
k&
55 1 PEEER 58 2 PR 55 3 PEER Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
BT T BT T BT IT BT T BT IT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEMERFR * Accounts receivable* - - - 25922 25,922
STAFEIFE €K Financial assets included in
HitERGEIE SR prepayments and deposits
BE
-IE® * - Normal** 79,225 - - - 79,225
RELREEEY Cash, bank balances, and fixed
deposits
- HAREH — Not yet past due 607,150 - - - 607,150
686,375 - - 25,922 712,297
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29. EMBEMEERAAEE (&)

@ 1EERkE (&)
®2019F3831H

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE (continued)

(@)  Credit risk (continued)

As at 31 March 2019

+Z@ER8
TEERIEREIR
12-month ZHIFEER(EHEIE
expected credit loss Lifetime expected credit losses
L 75i&
551 FEER 58 2 PEER 8% 3 PEEX Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
BETTT BT BT BIETIT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEMERFR * Accounts receivable* - - - 44,657 44,657
SEAFEEIE « €K Finandcial assets included in
HbEWEIER SR prepayments and deposits
B
-IEE - Normal** 53,182 - - - 53,182
ReNRESEEY Cash, bank balances, and fixed
deposits
- HAREH — Not yet past due 408,113 - - - 408,113
461,295 - - 44,657 505,952
* AEBERBES(ENEKRINMS » DUBHE * For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the simplified approach for

SElEAERNER N BRI 10 K8 -

o BRFATRNHIER RS REAMBYHENSREE
WEBHEWEENBETZESRNEEBNRER
DIRWIEERBRELFR  2SEENEEEZ
WA TIEER, -

BIZE 20204 3 A 31 HIEFE - SEAKREFHEKER
AR FEUER FRARZARY 67% (2019 £F 1 52% ) o

BNEERE BUIRREERRIVE—SBENN » 5
ZNNGEERO

(b) REBEZER

SENBREEREZRBESTR  DIEFRESTE
MRS - BRSO R ETRRNEEMN

TRFFHIITAE VB EENRRE B HBEENEIHE
W WTIRBETMARBRRESRE (BELETARIES
HeAMEXH  BERTEINE  AIRRERSE B A
MESHENEXH ) RAEELEENRTREFEN
Rk FHBMEHE -
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impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 10.

x* The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments and deposits are
considered to be "normal" when they are not past due and there is no information
indicating that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial

recognition.

As at 31 March 2020, 67% (2019: 52%) of the total accounts receivable was due from the
Group's five largest customers.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's exposure to credit risk arising
from accounts receivable are set out in note 10.

(b)  Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to satisfy its contractual and reasonably foreseeable
obligations as they fall due.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on the contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group
and the Council can be required to pay.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE (continued)

(b)  Liquidity risk (continued)

5H The Group
2020 £ 2020
HBETHY
KRR iBB—FE iBBmEE
RERE BR—FA MBS NBREF
Total HEER More than More than
BRE{E contractual Within 1 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted year or on less than less than
amount cash flows demand 2 years 5 years
BETT EETT BT BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HEaE Lease liabilities 1,919 2,052 551 555 946
e EeRESZ K E ML Finandal liabilities included
FERTFRIR (BEE 13) in accounts payable and
accruals (note 13) 92,449 92,449 92,449 - -
94,368 94,501 93,000 555 946
XENR The Council
2020 £ 2020
HETHY
RIfrIR iBB—FE EBmEE
RERE BR—FA MBS NBREF
Total HEER More than More than
BREE contractual Within 1 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted year or on less than less than
amount cash flows demand 2 years 5 years
BETT EETT BT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
EHEaE Lease liabilities 1,734 1,863 465 466 932
e EeRE S Kk M Finandal liabilities included
FERTFRIA (BYEE 13) in accounts payable and
accruals (note 13) 91,646 91,646 91,646 - -
e B ARFIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 11,841 11,841 11,841 = =
105,221 105,350 103,952 466 932

R20195F3 331 B KREREENRABEREER
HERR—FA -

()  FIRMER
FE R BB HEERARER

(d)  FMEEJERS
FENRR R BB EERIMNEER

For 2019, the contractual maturities of all financial liabilities for the Group and Council are

less than one year.

(c) Interest rate risk

The Council considers that there is no significant exposure to interest rate risk.

(d)  Currency risk

The Council considers that there is no significant exposure to currency risk.

EENRB HKPC
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29. EMAMESERANEE (48)

EEMMAEN TEX, BERESNMEARSED - £
EREHRAEMERARETRZEBMELNR S
BRI ER

SEEREANEZARRREREBRENFERE -
DURTEREERN A RARSNAEIMNE (R

SEZREENEATERE - EHERNEEEED
EXRGER - EAFELLUREE  £ENDRBNETMK
BRAEMESZISNRIEINNERREFTRR -

30. FEBEARS

BRAMBHRE S BWENR S KGRI EEBENE
PETLU BB SRS

LENRNBEERERHBITHRRERE - BHNK
FAREEDRBEERTES]  BILEENREBT
ZENXSERABEH IR WRAKREA2FET
e FR - AENRBHEBTREENREREREE
TR

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE (continued)

(e) Capital management

The Group defines "capital" as including all components of total funds. Trading balances
that arise as a result of trading transactions with other group companies are not regarded
by the Group as capital.

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern and to enable the Group to meet its liabilities as they fall
due for the foreseeable future.

The Group's capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed with due regard to the
capital management practices of the Group. Neither the Council nor its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirement in the current and prior years.

30. RELATED PARTY TRASACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group entered into the following related party transactions during the
year:

Council Membership of the Council is appointed by the Chief Executive of the
Government. The Government has significant influence over the Council, and transactions
between the Council and the Government are considered to be related party transactions
and are identified separately in these financial statements. During the year, the Council had
the following related party transactions with the Government and Council Members:

2020 2019
BT BIETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
WER T ER) » BREEMEES) Receipt of government subvention used for recurrent activities 237,292 239,424
REBFHIRIEBA (HiEEa) Service income from the Government (note a) 126,052 110,703
REBIFEBEBIWA (FM:Eb) Service income from government funding schemes (note b) 74,750 69,280
KERE ENREESHREREN Purchase from entities related to members of the Council
2 80 1,034
FEE Notes:
(a) RKEBUNHRBBAIS S RIREEE RIERE - (a) The service income from the Government relates to projects in environmental

BRI EEEEERE 0 WEREHEBHE
K SUEBEARRBUTERFIRI LB A B EMES
B BB RIU A IR 5R 1hh sk R ERURER Y

()  REBFEBFHNERAERTIRE @ LERED
BBHEER NG - MR IZ R IBZE R
WTHRHY

31. BAFERRAILE

R BHEAEENFR 2020 FF 7 B 29 B FAT
B -
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management, technology development, information technology, business management,
etc., which are obtained either by a competitive process or through partnership
agreements with various government departments, and the income is charged in

accordance with the terms of the agreements.

(b) The service income from government funding schemes relates to projects in research
and development which are obtained by a competitive process and the income is
charged in accordance with the terms of the agreements.

31. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Council on
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